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WE VALUE WISDOM
We use knowledge, 

experience and 
understanding to  

make the decisions 
that matter.

WE VALUE COMPASSION
We care about people – their 
safety matters above all else. 

Every person’s need is 
different and is respected.  

Our service quality is  
second to none.

WE VALUE COURAGE
We are fearless and 

courageous in making  
things happen, embracing 

opportunities and  
creating solutions.

Our Vision,
Our Community, 

Your Health



WE ARE  
RESPONSIBLE

We work hard to meet or 
exceed expectations and 

comply with what is 
required of us.

WE SURPASS
Your experiences in our 
care will be safe and the 

highest quality they 
can be.

WE CONNECT
Our collaborations, 
partnerships and 

relationships are vital 
to our success.

WE LEARN
Our skilled team 

are the heart of our 
organisation; they are 
dedicated to lifelong 

learning, allowing us to 
deliver high quality 

healthcare.WE CREATE
Discovering and 

developing innovative 
solutions is our way of 

delivering the best 
care we can.

FUTURE PRIORITIESFUTURE PRIORITIES
OUR COMMITMENTSOUR COMMITMENTS

Actively involved in staff education and graduate nursing programs. 
Cooper Energy kindly donated towards the purchase of real time education manikins.
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KEY INITIATIVES:KEY INITIATIVES:
Response to Pandemic (COVID-19)
In response to the worldwide Pandemic PDH spent 
a considerable part of early 2020 preparing for the 
arrival of the coronavirus in our community and 
adapting to the need to prevent infection from 
coronavirus within our facilities. We have focused 
on ensuring that our staff have all the right personal 
protective equipment and the knowledge to use it, 
understand the importance of physical distancing 
and how to maintain it in the workplace, minimising 
the number of people entering our buildings and 
checking they are well on entry. We have created 
zones in our patient areas to separate potentially 
high risk from lower risk patients and minimise 
cross infection. Our clinicians have worked 
closely with the building and maintenance team 
looking at air flow, heating and cooling, creating 
pods, donning and doffing anti-rooms, along with 
configuring pop-up COVID-19 testing clinics- both 
walk in and drive through. 

The first instance of COVID-19 was detected in 
Victoria on the 25th January 2020 and from that 
time until the end of June 2020 the Portland District 
Health Fever clinic staff worked with our community, 
testing 1990 people for COVID-19. We undertook 
both asymptomatic (front facing workers) and 
symptomatic testing sessions, to assess for the 
presence of COVID-19 in the local population, 
all of these tests returned negative results. The 
second wave of the Pandemic started at the end of 
May 2020 with the first outbreaks in Portland not 
occurring until Mid-July 2020. 

Portland District Health provided an important 
leadership role throughout the Pandemic ensuring 
everyone has the right messages and information 
to keep themselves and the community safe and 
minimise the risks of spreading the novel coronavirus 
locally, particularly into the more vulnerable parts 
of the community.

Being a front facing healthcare service, Portland 
District Health has remained open and been at 
the front line of the pandemic. We have not only 
provided advice and care but also been focussed on 
compliance, facilitating new ways of working with 
patients and colleagues whilst maintaining physical 
distancing. These included telehealth, working from 
home, redesigning our elective surgery program, 
changing the layout of waiting areas, redefining the 
entrances to our facilities to funnel people to our 
health checking stations, new storage arrangements 
for equipment and clinical waste, additional cleaning 
resources, traffic management, additional signage 
and many other refinements to processes. We have 
responded to this rapidly evolving situation and had 

The year 2019/20 has had unprecedented 
consequences not only on Portland District 
Health but throughout the world. The 
most significant of these is the coronavirus 
pandemic, this virus first seen in December 
2019 and since has threatened the lives of 
people around the globe. It is hard to now 
remember a time before COVID-19 and social 
distancing was not our top concern. 

During 2019/20 the other significant event 
that impacted PDH was a serious cyber 
security attack. Whilst not compromising 
our patient data it did challenge our internal 
network and connections to the outside world 
for a prolonged period of time. 

Bushfires over the summer months have also 
been significant and whilst the Southwest of 
Victoria did not see the same severity as in 
Gippsland and the Northeast of the state we 
did experience being cut off from our major 
referral pathways on several occasions. This 
challenged us to ensure we had the right staff 
available to manage any emergencies and 
review our emergency management plan. 

Living and working within the COVID-19 
pandemic is an unprecedented time and for 
the PDH team and our community we have 
had to rapidly adapt the majority of our work 
methods and daily routines to keep ourselves, 
our colleagues, friends, family and community 
safe, healthy and well. 

The PDH team has proven to share the same 
resilience as our wider community and with 
good engagement, problem solving and 
dedication has continued to provide the 
comprehensive accessible quality range of 
health services for our community need. 
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to readjust services many times as new guidelines 
and directions have been issued by the Public 
Health Office of DHHS.

Response to Cyber Security Attack 
The other significant issue that confronted the 
Barwon Southwest (BSW) health region including 
Portland District Health in 2020 was a cyber-attack 
on our network hosted by the South West Rural 
Health Alliance (SWARH). On the 30th September 
2019 our network was attacked and a code yellow 
was declared, this followed with the shutting down 
of all internet connections, including the secure 
connections to DHHS. Resources from both the 
Victorian and Australian Government Cyber security 
teams working in Geelong to contain and eliminate 
the threats to the extensive systems in use across 
the BSW health services. Following this, significant 
work has occurred to rebuild the networks 
functionality and to harden the network to ensure it 
is safeguarded into the future.

Portland District Health over the course of three 
months between September 2019 and January 
2020 whilst our SWARH systems were either 
offline or partially offline relied on our 
innovative approach to develop workarounds, 
ensuring no risk to patient care or data, whilst 
enabling our clinicians to continue seeing to the 
needs of our patients. This was at times 
extremely challenging for all concerned and we 
are grateful to all the hard work that occurred 
to enable us to continue delivering safe and high 
quality care and services during this time.

Business as Usual 
Despite the unprecedented and significant issues 
we have managed in 2019/2020, we have also 
maintained as much as possible all of our business 
as usual services.

Portland District Health continue to partner with 
SEAChange, a collective impact program to help 
spread a healthy vibe into our community and 
encourage people to reach their best health 
potential by making sustainable eating and activity 
changes no matter how big or small.

Maternal and Child Health Services are an essential 
part of giving our children the best start in life and 
Portland District Health successfully tendered to 
provide this service in the Glenelg Shire.  The new 
look women’s and children’s health program has 
been embraced by our families and we have added 
the exciting new children’s playgroup to this service. 

We continue to work hard to transition from the 
old ACHS (Australian Council of Health Services) 
Accreditation standards to the new NSQHS (National 
Safety and Quality Health Service) accreditation 

standards. The transition is guided by the EQuIP 
(Evaluation and Quality Improvement Program) 
standards, however the pandemic has interrupted 
the Accreditation Survey timetables. Despite these 
difficulties we continue to ensure our services are 
high quality and accessible.

We always put our consumers first, this past year 
focusing on an equity and Inclusion plan and an 
effective communication framework.

The population and number of visitors to Portland 
continues to grow along with increased activity of 
many of our services: 

• Emergency care increased by 333 presentations
to our Urgent Care Centre

• Meals on Wheels delivered 135 more meal than
last year

• Consistent birthing rates with a slight increase of
2 deliveries

• Occupational Therapy contact hours increased
by 291 hours

• Physiotherapy contact hours increased by 400
hours

• Speech Pathology contact hours increased by
244 hours

• District Nursing visits contact hours increased by
938 hours

Activity significantly decreased in the second part of 
the financial year due to COVID-19.

• Operations performed were down 576 cases
• In-patient days were down 1,317
• Most radiology department procedures had

significant reductions

We continued to support our community in many 
other ways via regular CEO Facebook posts and 
advertorials in the local paper to reassure the 
community of the COVID status, ways to prevent the 
spread, awareness of symptoms, how to get tested 
and how to stay active, social and healthy during 
restrictions.

In September 2019 we commenced our Health 
Service plan in consultation with the Department 
of Health and Human Services who commissioned 
Biruu Health Consulting to prepare a service plan 
for Portland District Health.  Consultation with 
staff, key community members, local GP’s visiting 
specialists and local groups were undertaken.  This 
service plan will help inform and guide the next 
stage of this project to undertake and complete a 
Master plan for our health service.

In order to deliver the current and future range 
of services to our rural based city, PDH requires 
rearrangement, refurbishment and a small 
extension of its current infrastructure. To ensure that 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & PRESIDENT REPORTCHIEF EXECUTIVE & PRESIDENT REPORT
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good planning occurs it is proposed to undertake 
a small master planning exercise including 
developing a staged approach to redevelopment 
and refurbishment of the current facilities.

Our People and Culture team conducted two reviews 
to gain a better understanding of our workforce and 
develop actions to enhance the workplace culture 
of our departments. As a result we have embedded 
a Health and Wellbeing program to protect and 
support staff against mental health issues, bullying 
& harassment and promote good behaviour and 
work ethics.

We secured funding for Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples and disability traineeships to 
develop core areas in the health service and provide 
trainees with sound training and strong mentoring 
as they learn and work in a healthcare service.

We continue to provide our leaders with the 
skills and tools to effectively discharge their staff 
management responsibilities via the Lead to 
Succeed program and have mentoring in place to 
assist our leaders reach their potential.

This year the PDH purchased a new anaesthetic 
machine as part of progressively updating 
technology. The machine has dual capabilities and 
can be adapted to serve as a ventilator for COVID-19 
patients if needed.  

Local Partnership Initiatives
We continue to collaborate with our neighbouring 
health services in the Barwon South West to connect, 
care and improve patient outcomes: 

• Telehealth services/programs have expanded, 
particularly since COVID-19

• Agreement formalised with South West 
Healthcare Mental Health services – to develop a 
subregional process to coordinate care

• Working with regional consortia’s to strengthen 
the response to family violence via staff 
education, policies and community awareness 
campaigns.

• Working with South West Healthcare and 
Western District Health Service to develop a rural 
generalist model and a regionalised approach to 
specialised medical services. 

Portland District Health continues to respect 
and work closely with our first nation’s 
people. The Grow Healthy Together or 
Ka-ree-ta Ngoot-yoong Wat-nan-da (Indigenous 
Health Advisory committee) meets quarterly to 
plan ways to improve indigenous health and 
employment in the region. Although meetings 
are paused we are continuing to develop a 
joint Reconciliation Action Plan for all member 
organisations. The committee endorsed the PDH 

2020-2023 Aboriginal Employment Plan and is 
working with us to develop a ‘Welcome Ceremony’ 
for all new medical staff at Portland District Health. 

Voluntary Support
We are always overwhelmed by the support of our 
community who, through their participation in our 
fundraising events, raised $21,966 at our Charity 
Golf day last March towards the purchase of three 
new baby bassinets for the Maternity ward. The 
annual golf day has been running for 8 years and 
consistently raises large sums of money towards 
essential equipment for the health service.

In October 2019 we held our Hospital Gala ball and 
thanked our hard working committee members, 
chefs, waiters/waitresses, bar staff, all of whom 
volunteered their time and made it a successful 
event.

The ball raised $10,000 which was used to purchase 
furniture for the newly built Indoor/Outdoor Healing 
Garden. This room is a welcoming modern space 
that will allow patients, families, staff and visitors 
to dine outside the confinements of their hospital 
room and socialise in a culturally safe environment 
inclusive and pleasant for all. 

More generally, the fundraising support from our 
local service clubs has been invaluable for the 
purchase of essential equipment throughout this 
financial year. These clubs include The Lions Club, 
Rotary Clubs of Portland and Portland Bay, Country 
Women’s Assoc. Heywood, Women’s Service Club 
RSL Memorial Bowling Club Women’s sub-section 
and United Way Glenelg, Portland anti-cancer 
council.

Beyond fundraising we celebrate the ongoing 
contribution of an amazing team of volunteers, 
although programs were interrupted this year by 
COVID-19, they have supported our clients in many 
ways including:

• providing entertainment and companionship to 
our Harbourside Lodge residents

• working within our end of life teams to support 
patients, carers and their families

• reducing isolation and loneliness by making daily 
phone calls to check our vulnerable community 
residents are ok

• cheerfully interacting with our elderly 
community residents as they deliver meals on 
wheels

• Providing community transport to disadvantaged 
community members to ensure they make 
appointments

• Supporting the hospital with administrative tasks 
and events

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & PRESIDENT REPORTCHIEF EXECUTIVE & PRESIDENT REPORT
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Each year PDH works with the Salvation Army to 
provide warmth to those in need in the community.  
The last three years we have channelled our efforts 
towards a blanket and coat drive by providing a drop 
off point at PDH for staff and community members 
to deliver warm preloved items for distribution. 
We also continue to put up our wishing tree each 
Christmas to attract donations of presents for our 
needy to ensure they have an enjoyable and festive 
Christmas.  Our community have shown year after 
year how generous they are, never holding back to 
donate to those less fortunate.

The impact of COVID-19 has been severe for many 
in our community and we have partnered with a 
huge range of service and volunteer organisations 
to run a support hot line 1800 Glenelg Together. 
This initiative is helping keep our most vulnerable 
community members at home and meeting 
their need to obtain essential food, supplies and 
medications.

We continue to encourage people to actively use 
their ‘My Health Records’ to better manage their 
health. It allows the patient to choose who sees 
their information and gives your doctors a more 
detailed foundation for decisions, diagnoses and 
treatments. It provides a convenient snapshot of 
your health, medical story, prescriptions, tests and 
results. In addition to improved amenity for day to 
day needs, having this all in one place at the one 
time is vital in an emergency.

The Future Leaders program of the Local Learning 
and Employment Network mentors students from 
Bayview College, Portland Secondary College and 
Heywood & District Secondary College to assist 
them to develop as strong community advocates 
and leaders. Portland District Health’s part in the 
program gives students the opportunity to explore 
health careers first hand and although this has 
looked very different this year due to COVID-19 we 
hope those that participated found fulfilment from 
the program.

We actively share our stories via our social media 
presence and have over 5000 followers on Facebook 
which is a huge increase of 3000 followers compared 
to this time last year. The increase was largely due 
to the communities need for updated and correct 
information relating to COVID-19. We encourage all 
members of the community to keep informed with 
what is happening at their Health Service by visiting 
the website and following us on Facebook.

We acknowledge and thank all who have supported 
Portland District Health during the 2019/20 year, 
including our staff, volunteers, clients and carers, 
the Department of Health and Human Services, our 
visiting medical and clinical staff, local GP’s and our 
partnering organisations. 

We are the front door to the wider Victorian health 
sector and work with all health care providers in both 
South West Victoria and Metropolitan Melbourne 
to ensure that patients get to the right staff, in the 
right place to have their health care needs met.  

Finally, we recognise and commend the outstanding 
service provided to the community by Roslyn 
(Ros) Pevitt. Ros was a Director on the Board of 
Management for 3 ½ years providing substantial 
support and was a wonderful representative for the 
indigenous community. We thank both Ros for her 
dedicated leadership, expertise and governance of 
the health service.

We welcomed to the Board of Management on 
01 July 2019, Assoc Prof Lara Fuller who has an 
extensive clinical background and rural medical 
education expertise which will assist with rural 
health workforce development. Lara is the Director 
of Deakin University’s Rural Community Clinical 
School and has a graduate certificate in medical 
education, fellowship of the Royal Australasian 
College of General Practitioners, and Bachelor of 
Medicine and Surgery with honours.

Please continue to stay connected with the health 
service and we will continue to advocate for high 
quality services for our community.

DR ANDREW LEVINGS
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT

CHRISTINE GILES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & PRESIDENT REPORTCHIEF EXECUTIVE & PRESIDENT REPORT
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEWFINANCIAL OVERVIEW

OPERATING PERFORMANCEOPERATING PERFORMANCE
The Net Result before Capital and Specific 
Items is used by management of PDH, DHHS 
and the Victorian Government to measure 
the ongoing operating performance of health 
services. For the financial year ended 30 June 
2020 the Net result before capital and specific 
Items was a surplus of $0.8m (2018/19 
$0.27m surplus). The improved operating 
performance was largely attributable to 
the net surplus obtained with sustainability 
funding.  The major expense off setting 
sustainable funding revenue is the high cost 
of providing highly skilled medical staff to 
maintain accessible, safe, high quality health 
service. The COVID-19 pandemic has also 
impacted the financial result with a reduction 
in services offered reducing revenue and an 
increase in staffing costs for areas such as 
the COVID fever clinic increasing expenses. 
DHHS have provided additional support to 
assist PDH.

Service delivery increased in the following 
areas of PDH:
• Urgent care by 4% or 333 presentations

with 9,080 patients treated (2018/19 8,747)

CASHCASH
PDH generated net cash flows from operations 
in 2019/20 of $2.1m (2018/19 $2.3m). From 
this, borrowings were reduced by $0.42m 
and $1.125m was used to purchase plant and 
equipment. The current asset ratio at 30 June 
is 0.56:1 (0.56:1 2018/19).

ASSET PURCHASESASSET PURCHASES
Assets to the value of $1.1m were purchased 
in 2019/20. The major items purchased were 
theatre monitoring equipment ($215,069), 
orthopaedic equipment ($127,507), solar 
panels ($125,556) 

THE FUTURETHE FUTURE
The continuing support of the community is 
essential to ensure PDH’s financial future, as is 
the continuing partnership with government 
and sub-regional health services. We continue 
to operate in a climate where funding for 
health provision across the wider community 
is finite. Where possible all endeavors must be 
undertaken to maximise efficiencies in light of 
scarce financial resources whilst maintaining 
a suite of high quality health services to meet 
local community health needs.

Portland District Health (PDH) incurred a 
comprehensive consolidated deficit in 2019/20 of 
$3.2m ($1.4m 2018/19) a decline of $1.8m.

PDH is constantly challenged to maintain service 
delivery in a financially sustainable manner.  The 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
continues to work closely with PDH under the 
Intensive Monitoring program whereby financial 
performance is monitored on a regular basis. PDH 
continually look for financial strategies to work 
towards achieving a sustainable business model. 
PDH acknowledges the support provided by DHHS 
during the year and looks forward to continuing the 
close collaboration in current year.
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Responsible Bodies Declaration
In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, we are pleased to present the Report of Operations 
for Portland District Health for the year ending 30 June 2020.

MS CHRISTINE GILES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PORTLAND DISTRICT HEALTH
Date: 30 July 2020

ANDREW LEVINGS
PRESIDENT BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
PORTLAND DISTRICT HEALTH
Date: 30 July 2020

FINANCIALS
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

$’000s $’000s $’000s $’000s $’000s

OPERATING RESULT

Total Revenue 54,134 52,371 45,766 42,457 38,400

Total Expenses 56,690 53,564 48,391 44,061 41,056

Net Result from transactions (2,556) (1,193) (2,625) (1,604) (2,654)

Total other economic flows (571) (175) (8) 60 (40)

Net Result (3,127) (1,368) (2,633) (1,544) (2,694)

Total Assets 72,289 74,718 68,011 66,088 66,699

Total Liabilities 16,200 15,441 14,101 14,414 13,480

Net Assets / Total Equity 56,089 59,276 53,910 51,674 53,219

 RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FROM TRANSACTION AND OPERATING RESULTS
2019-20
$’000s

NET OPERATING RESULT* 798

Capital Purpose Income 619

Depreciation and Amortisation (3,904)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (61)

Finance Costs (Other) (8)

Net Results from Transactions (2,556)

*The Net operating result is the result which the health service is monitored against in its Statement of Priorities (parent result)

*Financials includes the consolidated controlled entity Active Health Portland Ltd.

PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCEPERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE
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Board Chair/PresidentBoard Chair/President
Dr Andrew Levings
Appointed: 19 Aug 2014
Term Expires: 30 June 2022
Committees:
• Finance, Audit & Risk
• Remuneration
• Grow Healthy Together

Indigenous Advisory

Director Senior Deputy- Chair Director Senior Deputy- Chair 
Alex Campbell
Appointed: 01 July 2016
Term Expires: 30 June 2022
Committees:
• Finance, Audit & Risk
• Remuneration

Director/Junior Deputy-Chair Director/Junior Deputy-Chair 
Dr Ann Miller
Appointed: 01 July 2016
Term Expires: 30 June 2021
Committees:
• Quality, Safety & Risk

DirectorDirector
Anita Rank
Appointed: 2012
Term Expires: 30 June 2021 
Committees:
• Consumer Advisory (Chair)
• Active Health Portland

(Director/Chair)

2019-20  2019-20  
MEETING ATTENDANCE MEETING ATTENDANCE 
Dr Andrew Levings 10 / 10
Dr Ann Miller 8 / 10
Anita Rank 8 / 10 
Prof Lara Fuller 7 / 10
Prof Michael Bailey 7 / 10
Alex Campbell 10 / 10
Sandy Burgoyne 8 / 10 
Roslyn Pevitt 5 / 7
Michael Bartos 10 / 10

BOARD OF MANAGEMENTBOARD OF MANAGEMENT

DirectorDirector
Sandy Burgoyne
Appointed: 01 July 2016
Term Expires: 30 June 2021
Committees:
• Workforce, Culture &

Development (Chair)
• Remuneration

DirectorDirector
Roslyn Pevitt
Appointed: 01 July 2016
Resigned: 5 February 2020
Committees:
• Grow Healthy Together

Indigenous Advisory
• Workforce, Culture &

Development
• Active Health Portland

DirectorDirector
Prof Michael Bailey 
Appointed: 01 July 2017 
Term Expires: 30 June 2023 
Committees:
• Quality, Safety & Risk
• Finance, Audit & Risk

DirectorDirector
Prof Michael Bartos
Appointed: 01 July 2018
Term Expires: 30 June 2021
Committees:
• Quality, Safety & Risk
• Consumer Advisory

DirectorDirector
Prof Lara Fuller
Appointed: 01 July 2019
Term Expires: 30 June 2022
Committees:
• Quality, Safety & Risk

The Board Directors at Portland District Health 
are remunerated for their service effective as of 
1 July 2018. 

The skills and experience within the Board 
Directors is regularly reviewed by Governance 
Evaluator via a skills survey to ensure an 
appropriate Board skill mix is maintained and 
to identify any deficits in their governance 
processes that requires strengthening.

The Board of Management is responsible to 
the Minister for Health for setting the strategic 
direction and governance of Portland District 
Health, within the framework of government 
policy.  Board Directors are accountable for 
ensuring the services:
• are efficiently and effectively managed;
• provide high quality care and service delivery;
• meet the needs of the community; and
• meet performance targets

The Directors are committed to ensuring that 
the services provided by Portland District Health 
comply with their legislative requirements and 
the Objectives, Mission and Vision of the Service, 
within the resources provided.

The Directors review governance information 
monthly in order to continually assess the 
performance of Portland District Health against 
its objectives and are also responsible for 
appointing and evaluating the performance of 
the Chief Executive Officer. 

The Victorian Government has also committed 
to ensuring government boards and committees 
broadly mirror the diversity present in Victoria’s 
communities. This includes appropriate 
representation of women, regional Victorians, 
Aboriginal people, young Victorians, Victoria’s 
culturally diverse community, the LGBTI 
community and Victorians living with a disability.
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer 
Christine Giles 

Executive Director of Corporate ServicesExecutive Director of Corporate Services
Karena Prevett

Executive Director of NursingExecutive Director of Nursing
Roslyn Nagorcka

Executive Director of Primary Care ServicesExecutive Director of Primary Care Services
Margaret Cadenhead

Executive Director Medical Services Executive Director Medical Services 
Dr Kaushik Banerjea

Finance ManagerFinance Manager
Greg Schultz

Director Quality, Safety & RiskDirector Quality, Safety & Risk
Loren Drought

Director Health IntelligenceDirector Health Intelligence
Claire Holt

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENTEXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Executive team met 40 times during the 
year, providing regular reports to the Board of 
Management.

Back left: Karena Prevett, Kaushik Banerjea, Ros Nagorcka, Greg Schultz, Loren Drought, Claire Holt
Front left: Christine Giles, Margaret Cadenhead

9
Portland District Health | Annual Report 2019-20 9



ORGANISATIONAL CHARTORGANISATIONAL CHART

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

Ca
te

ri
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

&
 F

un
dr

ai
si

ng

Pe
op

le
 &

 C
ul

tu
re

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
e

Pa
yr

ol
l

SW
A

RH
Jo

in
t 

Ve
nt

ur
e

D
ir

ec
to

r 
H

ea
lt

h 
In

fo
rm

at
ic

s

M
ed

ic
al

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

Se
ni

or
 M

ed
ic

al
 O

ffi 
 c

er
s

Vi
si

ti
ng

 M
ed

ic
al

 O
ffi 

 c
er

s

Ju
ni

or
 M

ed
ic

al
 O

ffi 
 c

er
s

Ph
ar

m
ac

y

M
ed

ic
al

 Im
ag

in
g

Pa
th

ol
og

y

A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h

H
ea

lt
h 

Pr
om

ot
io

n
&

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n

A
lc

oh
ol

 &
 O

th
er

D
ru

gs
 / 

Co
un

se
lli

ng

H
om

e 
Ba

se
d 

Se
rv

ic
es

• 
Pa

lli
at

iv
e 

Ca
re

• 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
ur

si
ng

• 
Ly

m
ph

ed
em

a

H
ea

lt
h 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 
Pr

og
ra

m

Ph
ys

io
th

er
ap

y 
/

Ex
er

ci
se

 P
hy

si
ol

og
y

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

H
ea

lt
h

H
ea

lt
h 

In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

U
ni

t

H
ea

lt
h 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e

Pe
ri

op
er

at
iv

e
• 

Th
ea

tr
e

• 
D

PU
• 

CS
SD

• 
Pr

e-
A

dm
is

si
on

So
ut

h 
W

ar
d

• 
Su

b-
A

cu
te

• 
Pa

lli
at

iv
e 

Ca
re

• 
TC

P
• 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

A
ss

is
t 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 N
ur

si
ng

 
(A

D
O

N
)

U
rg

en
t 

Ca
re

 
Ce

nt
re

• 
Sh

or
t 

St
ay

 U
ni

t

N
or

th
 W

ar
d

• 
A

cu
te

• 
M

ed
ic

al
 / 

Su
rg

er
y

• 
M

id
w

if
er

y

Ed
uc

at
io

n
• 

St
aff

  D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
• 

Cl
in

ic
al

 E
du

ca
ti

on

SE
A

Ch
an

ge
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 H
ea

lt
h 

Re
co

rd

D
ir

ec
to

r 
Q

ua
lit

y 
&

 S
af

et
y

Q
ua

lit
y,

 S
af

et
y 

&
 

Cl
in

ic
al

 A
ud

it

In
fe

ct
io

n 
Co

nt
ro

l

Re
vi

ew
ed

 Ju
ne

 2
01

9 
by

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e
Eff

 e
ct

iv
e 

1 
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Cl
in

ic
al

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 T

ea
m

“C
LI

N
IC

AL
 G

O
VE

RN
AN

CE
 IS

 T
H

E 
RE

SP
O

N
SI

BI
LI

TY
 O

F 
AL

L 
PD

H
 S

TA
FF

”

M
ed

ic
al

 
A

m
bu

la
to

ry
 

D
ay

 S
ta

y
• 

Ch
em

ot
he

ra
py

• 
D

ia
ly

si
s

• 
Sl

ee
p 

St
ud

ie
s

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Cl

in
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ed

ic
al

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ca
re

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
Cl

in
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
ur

si
ng

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 O

ffi 
 c

er

Bo
ar

d 
of

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Ac
ti

ve
 H

ea
lt

h 
Po

rt
la

nd
 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ir

ec
to

rs

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 t
o 

CE
O

Vo
lu

nt
ee

rs

Fi
na

nc
e

Su
pp

lie
s 

/ P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t

Fi
na

nc
e 

/ A
ud

it

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
/ O

H
&

S

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

A
ge

d 
Ca

re

Portland District Health | Annual Report 2019-20 10



OUR SERVICESOUR SERVICES

MEDICAL UNITSMEDICAL UNITS
Anaesthesiology
Cardiology
Dermatology
Endocrinology
Endoscopies
ENT Surgery
General Surgery 
General Medicine 
Geriatric Medicine
Nephrology
Obstetrics and Gynaecology
Oncology
Ophthalmology
Oral Surgery
Orthopaedics 
Paediatrics 
Plastic Surgery
Respiratory
Urgent Care
Urology 
Vascular

DIAGNOSTICDIAGNOSTIC
Echocardiograms
Holter Monitoring
Pathology 
Pharmacy
Radiology
• CT Scanning
• General X-rays
• Ultrasound 
• Mammograms
• Fluoroscopy
• Bone Density
• OPG/Cone beam CT

Sleep Studies
Stress Testing

NURSING / MIDWIFERY NURSING / MIDWIFERY 
SPECIALITIESSPECIALITIES
Central Sterilizing Service
Chemotherapy
Day Procedure
Hospital in the Home
Immunisation Service 
Lactation Consultant 
Medical - Acute
Midwifery - Neonatal Care
Palliative Care

Our team of dedicated nurses supporting the pop-up clinics  
during the commonwealth COVID-19 testing blitz.

Perioperative
Renal Dialysis
Residential Aged Care 
Respite Care
Shorts Stay UCC
Sub-Acute care
Surgical - Acute
Transition Care 
Urgent Care (Emergency)

PRIMARY, COMMUNITY & PRIMARY, COMMUNITY & 
ALLIED HEALTHALLIED HEALTH
Asthma Education
Breast Care
Cancer Support 
Community Nursing
Continence
Counselling
• Psychology
• Social Worker
• Mental Health Nurse

Diabetes Education
Dietetics
Discharge Planning
District Nursing
Drug, Alcohol  
& Counselling
Exercise Physiologist
Hand Therapy
Health Independence 
• Community Rehab
• HARP
• Post-Acute Care

Health Promotion 
Lymphoedema
Needle Exchange
Occupational Therapy
Palliative Care
Physiotherapy
Podiatry
Speech Therapy

SUPPORT SERVICESSUPPORT SERVICES
Administration
Health Informatics
Hotel Services
• Catering
• Environmental
• Meals on Wheels

Staff Education
Maintenance
Quality & Safety
• Infection Control  

& Prevention
Security 
Staff Health
Supply
Waste Management
Volunteers
Helipad

Portland District Health | Annual Report 2019-20 11



SALARIED MEDICAL OFFICERSSALARIED MEDICAL OFFICERS
Emergency Physicians
Dr T Baker MBBS (Hons) B.MedSc 
(Hons) FACEM
Dr A Lishman MBBS (Hons) 
B.MedSc FACEM
Dr S Thomas MBBS FACCRM
Dr C Belchi MBBS FACEM
Specialist Physicians
Dr N Sharma MBBS MS FRACP 
FCSANZ
Dr S Jayathilake MBBS FRACP
Surgeons
Mr Sanjaya Karunaratne MBBS 
M.S FRCSED FRACS
Mr Anamitra Sarkar MBBS M.S 
FRACS
Anaesthetists
Dr P Reid MB CHB DUND
Dr J Parker (GP Anaes) FACRRM 
MBBS
Obstetricians & Gynaecologist
Dr Yasser Diab MBBS FRANZCOG 
MD
Hospital Medical Officers
Dr R Nelakurthi MBBS
Dr Neeraj Nilmani MBBS
Dr Zheng Yin (Rodney) MBBS
Dr Abhirami Selvakumar MBBS
Dr Pratibha Ranjan (Pattie) MBBS
Dr Karnanvir Gill MBBS
Dr Abdul Mannan MBBS
Senior Medical Officers
Dr Ashraf Sorial RACGP
Dr Vijay Kumar MB General Med / 
Emergency Med
Registrars
Dr Hilary Smith (Emergency) MBBS
Dr Aaron Donovan (Surgical) MBBS
Paediatrician
Britta Baade MBBS, FRACP, MD
Ophthalmologist
Dr R Harvey MBBS, FRCO, FRACS

VISITING MEDICAL OFFICERSVISITING MEDICAL OFFICERS
General Practitioners
Dr G Patel MBBS
Specialist Anaesthetist
Dr J Muir MBchB LRCP LRCS FRCA 
FANZCA
Dr N Shorney MBBS FANZCA
Dr C Bonney MBBS FRANZCA

Physicians
Dr A Bowman MBBS FRACP
Dr T Branken MBChB (Brim) FCP 
(SA) FRACP
Endocrinologist
Dr G Nicholson MBBS FRACP
Nephrologist
Dr M Desmond MBBS FRACP PHD
Dr C Somerville MBBS FRACP PHD
Dr A Tjipto MBBS FRACP
Oncologist 
Dr I Collins MBBS FRACP
Dr T Hayes MBBS FRACP
Radiation Oncologist
Dr T Gleisner MBBS FRACP
Dr S Islam MBBS FRACP
Haematologist
Dr J Brotchie MBBS FRACP
ENT Specialist
Dr A Cass MBBS FRACS
Paediatrician
Dr N Thies MBBS DCH FRACP (Paed)
Dr K Olinsky MBBS FRACP (Paed)
Radiologists
Dr D Cleeve MBBS FRANZCR
Dr J Eng MBBS FRANZCR
Dr R Jarvis MBBS FRANZCR
Dr S Skinner MBBS FRANZCR
Dr J Wilkie MBBS RCR RANZCR
Dr J Tamangani MBBS MSc RCR
Dr S Kruger MBBS FRANZCR
General Surgeons
Mr U Naidoo MBCHB FCS (FA) 
Mr J Ragg MBBS FRACS
Mr R Moore MBBS FRACS
Mr P Gan MBBS FRACS 
Orthopaedic Surgeons
Dr K Arogundade MBBS FRACS 
MD FRCS
Dr M Liptak BMBS FRACS
Dr M Ling BMBS FRACS 
Prof J Krishnan MBBS FRACS PhD
Dr M Penta MBBS FRACS FAOA
Dr A Sood BMBS FRACS
Dr J Ward BMBS FRACS
Dr A Mitra MBBS FRACS
Dr N Russell BMBS FRACS
Plastic Surgeon
Dr R Toma MBBS FRACS (Plast)
Dr J Masters MBBS FRACS (Plast)
Dr P Riddell MBBS FRACS (Plast)
Urologist
Mr A Davidson MBBS FRACS

Dermatologist
Dr M Goh MBBS FACD
Dr V Chitreddy MBBS FACD
Dr A Amerasingh MBBS FACD
Dr E Veysey MBBS, MBChB, 
MRCP, MPG, FACD

VISITING DENTAL OFFICERSVISITING DENTAL OFFICERS
Oral Maxillo Facial Surgeon
Dr B Robinson MDS BDS
Dentists 
Dr A Nascimento BDS
Dr D Blood BDS

VISITING ALLIED HEALTHVISITING ALLIED HEALTH
Psychologist
Lana Kossoft (Aged Care)
Prosthetist
P Young ADDP

Portland District Health regulates 
the appointment, credentialing 
and definition of scope of clinical 
practice for all health practitioners 
who provide services within our 
health service. 

Portland District Health is working 
with South West Healthcare, 
Western District Health Service, and 
Colac Area Health to streamline 
credentialing services in the region.

PDH MEDICAL OFFICERSPDH MEDICAL OFFICERS

Dylan Gracias, third year 
medical student at the 
University of Melbourne, has 
started a clinical assistant 
role at Portland District 
Health as part of the Student 
Assistance in Supporting 
Healthcare (SASH) program.

SASH was launched to 
employ medical students 
in hospitals to help with 
medical tasks and alleviate 
the workload due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.
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Labour Category June 
Current Month FTE

June 
YTD FTE

2020 2019 2020 2019

Nursing 157.90 157.14 155.53 149.57

Administration & Clerical 50.13 48.73 49.95 47.67

Medical Support 6.44 5.35 6.74 5.5

Hotel and Allied Services 40.50 37.5 38.70 38.62

Medical Officers 17.57 18.89 17.69 16.6

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) 30.27 31.86 31.09 32.33

TOTAL 302.80 299.47 299.69 290.29

STAFFINGSTAFFING
2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Number of Staff Employed 486 469 450 427

Number of Staff Employed (EFT) 299.69 290.29 269.66 261.42

Time Lost through Work Cover Claims (EFT) 0.63 0.47 0.30 0.00

Time Lost through Industrial Disputes (hours) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sick Leave as % of Basic Salaries 4.89% 5.64% 5.57% 5.57%

WORKFORCE DATAWORKFORCE DATA

Portland District Health is committed to the principles of merit and equity in the workplace with respect to 
employment, promotion and opportunity.

New Anaesthetic machines has double use, potentially serving as ventilators for COVID-19 patients.
From Left: Anaesthetists, Dr Peter Reid and Dr Jun Parker, Theatre nurses Pip Wombwell and Nicola Dutton

13
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STATUTORY COMPLIANCESTATUTORY COMPLIANCE
During 2019/20, Portland District Health made 
Nil mandatory reports to AHPRA regarding health 
professionals.  There were no reports under the 
Protected Disclosure Act.

CODE OF CONDUCTCODE OF CONDUCT
All staff receive training on appropriate/expected 
code of conduct as a part of regular mandatory 
training in ‘PDH Acceptable Workplace Behavior’ 
at Portland District Health. Part of this training 
includes ‘Workplace Bullying & Harassment’ policy 
which covers:
• Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004 
• Equal Opportunity (Gender Identity & Sexual 

Orientation Act 2000)
• Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Act 1986 
• Racial Discrimination Act 1975 
• Sex Discrimination Act 1984 
• Disability Discrimination Act 1992 
• Crimes Act 1958 
• Workplace Relations Act 1996

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONSINDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Nil work hours were lost at Portland District Health 
as a result of industrial action during 2019/20.

EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLESEMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES
Portland District Health is a public community based 
service that:
• makes fair employment decisions with a fair 

system of review; 
• recognises that the usual basis for engagement 

is as an ongoing employee; 
• makes decisions relating to engagement and 

promotion that are based on merit; 
• requires effective performance from each 

employee; 
• provides flexible, safe and rewarding workplaces 

where communication, consultation, cooperation 
and input from employees on matters that affect 
their workplaces are valued; 

• promotes workplace culture free from bullying, 
harassment, discrimination, patronage and 
favouritism; 

• recognises the diversity of the Portland 
community and fosters diversity in the 
workplace

PEOPLE AND LEARNINGPEOPLE AND LEARNING
Our commitment is to the ongoing development of 
Portland District Health as a dynamic and capable 
organisation. 

Portland District Health will:
• attract and retain dedicated, skilled, qualified 

and motivated workforce
• promote a workplace that is professional and 

supportive of the health and wellbeing of staff
• champion a learning and developmental culture
• ensure effective communication, collaborative 

decision making and problem solving
• support professional development pathways 

within the organisation via ‘GROW’ our learning 
management system, in-house scholarships, 
face to face training, education & professional 
development opportunities and promotion of 
conference attendances

• build succession capability within the 
organisation to plan for a strong future

POLICE RECORD CHECKSPOLICE RECORD CHECKS
It is a legislative requirement that all staff and 
volunteers have a current police check and working 
with children’s check (WWCC).  No one is employed 
or engaged as a volunteer at Portland District Health 
without a valid police record check.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (EEO) ACT (VIC) 2010EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (EEO) ACT (VIC) 2010
To comply with the legislation Portland District 
Health has effectively developed systems that 
ensure:
• Open competition in recruitment, selection, 

transfer and promotion
• All employment decisions are based on merit
• Employees are provided with a reasonable 

avenue of redress against any unfair treatment

WORKPLACE HEALTH & SAFETYWORKPLACE HEALTH & SAFETY
Our OH&S Management system has been thoroughly 
reviewed and areas strengthened, including 
ensuring we are meeting legislative compliance 
requirements. Our commitment to staff wellbeing 
is supported through our provision of the Employee 
Assistance Program (EAP) which is well utilised by 
staff and the availability of several contact officers 
in our organisation to provide support and guidance 
for staff experiencing any issues in the workplace.

Portland District Health empowers staff by providing 
ongoing training on family violence, elder abuse, 
bullying, harassment and sexual harassment, 
occupational violence, stress management, values 
and occupational health and safety.

WORKFORCE DATAWORKFORCE DATA
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Occupational Violence Statistics 2019/20 2018/19

1. WorkCover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE 0.33 0.99

2. Number of accepted WorkCover claims with lost time injury with an 
occupational violence cause per 1,000,000 hours worked 1.92 4.14

3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported 79 71

4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE 26.4 24.5

5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, 
illness or condition 6.3% 16.9%

PDH partners with local Rotary clubs to promote the #sayno2familyviolence campaign locally,  
with new posters raising awareness about family violence being placed on the back of all PDH toilet doors.

From left: Erin Barker and Claire Holt both staff members and members of Portland Rotary Club

OCCUPATIONAL VIOLENCE STATISTICSOCCUPATIONAL VIOLENCE STATISTICS
Portland District Health is committed to addressing occupational violence incidences.

WORKFORCE DATAWORKFORCE DATA
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ACTIVITY / INDICATOR 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16
Number of inpatients - Hospital 5501 5617 5207 4928 5000
Number of inpatients - Nursing Home 54 58 61 52 50
Number of inpatient days - Hospital 12746 14063 11354 11592 11897
Number of inpatient days - Nursing Home 10530 10501 10401 9934 10472
Daily Average (days - Hospital) 35 39 31 32 33
Daily Average (days - Nursing Home) 29 29 29 27 29
Average stay (days - Hospital) 2.32 2.50 2.18 2.35 2.37
Average stay (days - Nursing Home) 195 181.05 170.51 191.03 209.4
Number of beds available (same day) Hospital 15 15 15 15 15
Number of beds available (overnight stay) Hospital 55 55 55 55 55
Number of beds available - Nursing Home 30 30 30 30 30
Emergency Presentations 9,080 8748 7535 6861 6960
COVID-19 Testing Presentations 1,990 - - - -
Births 77 75 67 56 81
Hospital in the Home 10 9 11 8 10
Meals on Wheels delivered 6131 5996 6016 4039 3438
Meals served (total) 90229 97722 94648 86791 88335
Operations performed 2008 2584 2432 2235 2203
Radiology Department
Mammogram & Breast screens 1120 1333 1312 1215 1285
CT Examinations 2874 2814 2867 2482 2091
OPG / Dental Examinations 418 465 517 484 454
Procedures 832 1014 673 134 154
Ultrasound Examinations 6173 6427 5946 5263 5258
DEXA Scans 438 456 324 285 286
General X-rays 7114 7839 7925 7439 7248
X-ray - Inpatients  1299 1416 1371 1051 843
X-ray - Outpatients 16773 17868  13758 15262 14153
Examinations including Breastscreens (Total) 19029 20394 19564 16313 15680
Primary Care Statistics (Contact Hours)
Community Nursing 5084 5022 5208 4568 4378
Counselling / Social Work 1535 1488 1360 2683 3374
Dietetics 1259 1266 1068 981 1099
District Nurse visits 8992 9930 8849 9335 8130
IHSHY Youth Worker - Direct Care 196 203 338 466
Occupational Therapy 288 136 196 203 338
Palliative Care 913 622 1241 1480 2188
Physiotherapy 1968 2390 2466 3030 2741
Speech Pathology 2615 2215 1985 1700 1247
HACC / CHSP (Contact Hours) 
Dietetics - HACC-PYP 120 261 188 69 373
Dietetics - CHSP 363 281 286 353 -
Occupational Therapy - HACC/PYP 92 257 436 - -
Occupational Therapy - CHSP 792 597 730 - -
Podiatry - HACC-PYP 109 133 133 110 423
Podiatry - CHSP 402 503 569 565 -
Volunteer Coordinator - HACC/PYP 294 463 428 - -
Volunteer Coordinator - CHSP 1198 1059 1733 2265 2557

SERVICE ACTIVITYSERVICE ACTIVITY
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LIFE GOVERNORS & SERVICE AWARDSLIFE GOVERNORS & SERVICE AWARDS

Portland District Health values the significant contribution that many individuals make to the overall well-
being of the organisation.  The most prestigious award available to a person providing outstanding and 
continued long services to Portland District Health is Life Governorship.  

LIFE MEMBERS OF THE FORMER LIFE MEMBERS OF THE FORMER 
PORTLAND AND DISTRICT PORTLAND AND DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTRE INC.COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTRE INC.
Association for the Blind
Portland Neighborhood House
Mr Jeff Baulch
Mrs Marilyn Baulch
Mr W (Bill) Collett
Mr David Harris
Mr Jeff Knuckey
Mrs Anne Lanyon

LIFE GOVERNORSLIFE GOVERNORS
Apex Club of Portland
Helen Macpherson Smith (Trust)
Lions Club of Portland
Percy Baxter Trust
Portland Aluminium
Portland Professional  
Women’s Service Club
Rotary Club of Portland
Mrs Maureen Allan
Mrs Heather Burton
Mrs Brenda Edwards
Miss Sheila M Farrands
Mrs S Fyfe
Mrs Noelene Flowers
Mrs Pam Godfrey-Smith
Dr Geoff Hitchman
Mrs Mavis L Jennings
Mrs Roslyn Jones
Mrs Ellie Lane
Miss Eunice Lightbody
Mrs P Mitchell
Mr Michael Noske
Mrs Margrett Oates
Mr A K (Keith) Ough
Mr Kevin Phillips
Mr Stephen Poon
Mrs Mary M Sharrock
Mrs R Smith
Miss June Stewart
Mrs Faith Sutterby
Mr John C Wigan
Mrs Pat Wilmot

DISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARDSDISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARDS
1994 Mr Jesse Das - Retired 2019

CONSULTANT SURGEON EMERITUSCONSULTANT SURGEON EMERITUS
2008 Mr William C Maling - 
Deceased 2014

STAFF LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDSSTAFF LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS
10 years
Kerrie Ball
Nikki Edwards
Janette Fishwick
Michelle Fletcher
Cecilia Hayes
Roscoe Hine
Graeme Humphrey
Kathryn Humphries
Susan Malseed
Kaye Morton
Lynne Peters
Ranjana Puwakwaththa
Lynn Ross
Judith Solly
Lillian Sutton
Lauren Yuill

15 Years
Catherine Edwards
Natalie Herbertson
Cindy Huppatz
Michelle Lake
Gabrielle Lewis 
Dannielle Stuchbery
Nicola Taylor
Elizabeth Thurgood
Erin Wilson

20 Years
Tania Adams
Carolyn Meekins
Tanya Sandow
Marlene Tait
Simone Taylor

25 Years
Susan Holmes 
Michelle Petrie 

30 Years
Catherine Holien

35 Years
Vicki Barbary
Michelle Punton
We thank all of our wonderful and 
dedicated staff for their input and 
contribution in our mission – “The 
community we live and work in is 
vitally important to us – Our focus 
is the health and wellbeing of the 
people in our community”.

VOLUNTEER SERVICE AWARDSVOLUNTEER SERVICE AWARDS
5 years
Deanna Bird
Judy Compt
Natalie Hill
Judith James
Phillip Petrie
Lillian Sutton
Anthony Sweeney
Gregory Tait

10 Years
Valerie Baker
Mark Hurkmans
Owen Roberts

20 Years
Tania Adams
Carolyn Meekins
Tanya Sandow
Marlene Tait
Simone Taylor

25 Years
Judy Roberts

30 Years
Gail Nepean

35 Years
Lynne Newby
Portland District Health thanks 
all of our dedicated and valuable 
volunteers for the many hours of 
work and support every year for 
the benefit of our Health Service 
and community.

Harry Beresford, Exercise 
Physiologist and Clare Eldridge, 

Pharmacy Manager.
Successful recipients of the 

2018/19 Bert Wilmot Scholarship
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FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE

Better HealthBetter Health
Goals: Strategies:

A system geared to prevention as much as treatment 
Everyone understands their own health and risks 
Illness is detected and managed early
Healthy neighbourhoods and communities encourage healthy lifestyles

Reduce Statewide Risks

Build Healthy Neighbourhoods 

Help people to stay healthy 

Target health gaps
Deliverables 1:

Work with key employers in Portland to develop and pilot an organisational Staff Health and Wellbeing 
plan, using the SEAChange (Sustainable Eating and Activity Change) philosophy. Portland District Health 
will be one of the pilot program participants.

Outcome: ACHIEVED

Due to Covid-19 redirected deliverable to a PDH Staff Health and Wellbeing program. Framework has 
been developed, review undertaken and draft plan developed.
Deliverable 2:

Work with our collective impact partners to support our community to develop and implement initiatives 
to maintain the momentum of the change brand, SEA Change which is being independently evaluated by 
Deakin University.

Outcome: PARTIALLY ACHIEVED

Deakin University evaluation report issued in March 2020. Have been unable to promote initiatives due 
to cybersecurity and covid interference.

PART A - 2019/20 STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES: FINAL PROGRESS REPORTPART A - 2019/20 STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES: FINAL PROGRESS REPORT
Strategic priorities - Health 2040
In 2019-20 Portland District Health will contribute to the achievement of the Government’s commitments 
within Health 2040: Advancing health, access and care by:

Health Promotion team always looking for ways to get the message out to the community.
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Better AccessBetter Access
Goals: Strategies:

Care is always being there when people need it 
Better access to care in the home and community
People are connected to the full range of care and support they need
Equal access to care

Plan and invest 
Unlock innovation 
Provide easier access 
Ensure fair access

Deliverables 1:

Work with local General Practitioners (GP) to develop a telehealth service to improve access to a specialist 
gerontologist. Undertake a GP survey to measure improvement in access, increased referrals and 
heightened awareness of the telehealth service

Outcome: PARTIALLY ACHIEVED

Gerontologist telehealth in-patient service has been implemented with outpatient component under 
development.

GP survey evaluation to be carried over to 2020/21 financial year.
Deliverable 2:

Improve the service delivered to paediatric patients through the development and implementation of a 
multidisciplinary model of care.

Outcome: PARTIALLY ACHIEVED

Clinical Paediatric nurse coordinator role commenced and currently developing a service delivery model 
and pathway.

Any growth in Paediatric services has been halted by DHHS.

Better CareBetter Care
Goals: Strategies:

Targeting zero avoidable harm 
Healthcare that focusses on outcomes
Patients and carers are active partners in care 
Care fits together around people’s needs

Put quality First 
Join up care
Partner with patients 
Strengthen the workforce 
Embed evidence
Ensure equal care

Deliverables 1:

Implement the ‘Compassionate Caring’ developmental initiative to improve communication between 
clinicians and patients, patient health literacy and promote patient ownership of the decisions they make 
about their health. Engage with 80% of key clinical staff to deliver this initiative.

Outcome: PARTIALLY ACHIEVED

‘Compassionate Caring’ plan has been developed and endorsed by Executive committee, Quality, Safety 
& Risk committee and Consumer Advisory committee.

Implementation has been disrupted by cybersecurity and Covid-19 events.
Deliverable 2:

Achieve a commitment from all senior medical staff to adopt and implement the ‘Choosing Wisely’ model. 
Establish a multi-disciplinary key stakeholders’ group to develop and implement the model.

Outcome: ACHIEVED

‘Choosing Wisely’ model has been developed and completed by DMS 

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE
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Supporting the Mental Health SystemSupporting the Mental Health System
Achieve:

Improve service access to mental health treatment to address the physical and mental health needs of 
consumers.
Deliverable:

In collaboration with primary care sector, drug and alcohol services and the South West Healthcare as 
the tertiary area mental health services provider, implement the stepped care mental health model to 
ensure the availability of right mental health services at the right time, and ensure Portland clients can 
move seamlessly between services based on their level of need.

Outcome: NOT ACHIEVED 

Discussions initiated with South West Healthcare. Unable to progress due to cybersecurity and covid-19 
interference.

PART A - 2019/20 STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES: FINAL PROGRESS REPORT CONTINUEDPART A - 2019/20 STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES: FINAL PROGRESS REPORT CONTINUED
Specific priorities for 2019-20
In 2019-20 Portland District Health will contribute to the achievement of the Government’s priorities by:

Addressing Occupational ViolenceAddressing Occupational Violence
Achieve:

Fostering an Organisational wide occupational health and safety risk management approach, including 
identifying security risks and implementing controls, with a focus on prevention and improved reporting 
and consultation.

Implement the department’s security training principles to address identified security risks.
Deliverable:

Implement prioritised actions from the security audit action plan and re-evaluate security risks post 
implementation.

Outcome: PARTIALLY ACHIEVED

Implemented the security audit priority actions with successful funding as follows:

• Introduced security service to escort evening staff to cars  
• Outdoor lighting improved
• Code black and code grey policies reviewed

Currently seeking additional funding to implement the next phase as follows:

• Commenced lock down of doors within health services 

External reevaluation of action plan has been completed.

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE
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Addressing Bullying and HarassmentAddressing Bullying and Harassment
Achieve:

Actively promote positive workplace behaviors, encourage reporting and action on all reports. 

Implement the department’s Framework for promoting a positive workplace culture: preventing bullying, 
harassment and discrimination and Workplace culture and bullying, harassment and discrimination 
training: guiding principles for Victorian health services.
Deliverable:

Complete a gap analysis of the Framework for promoting a positive workplace culture: preventing bullying, 
harassment and discrimination, prioritise the actions and implement by November 2019.

Outcome: ACHIEVED:

Gap analysis has been completed with all actions prioritised

Restructured the Workforce Culture & Development committee to separate governance and operational 
responsibilities. Terms of Reference developed for the Workforce Planning committee (Board sub-
committee) and Culture and Wellbeing committee (PDH staff committee).  

Both committees finalised and scheduled.

Supporting Vulnerable PatientsSupporting Vulnerable Patients
Achieve:

Partner with patients to develop strategies that build capability within the organisation to address the 
health needs of communities and consumers at risk of poor access to health care.
Deliverable:

Prioritise meeting the needs of young families within the maternal and child health program by introducing 
enhanced care to those identified as high risk. Monitor the initiative using the maternal and child health 
program screening data.

Outcome: ACHIEVED

Enhanced care maternal and child health program developed and 3 year old playgroup implemented 
with evaluation underway.

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE

Allan Litowschenko has a rare auto-immune disease, ‘stiff person syndrome’ which affects the nervous system, 
with symptoms including extreme muscle stiffness, rigidity and painful spasms. Allan has learned to live with this 

disease with treatment including monthly infusions at Portland District Health.
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FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE

Supporting Aboriginal Cultural SafetySupporting Aboriginal Cultural Safety
Achieve:

Improve the health outcomes of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people by establishing culturally 
safe practices across all parts of the organisation to recognise and respect Aboriginal culture and deliver 
services that meet the needs, expectations and rights of Aboriginal patients, their families, and Aboriginal 
staff.
Deliverables 1:

Support the Gunditjmara world heritage listing by bringing the Budj Bim stories into our organisation 
in collaboration with the traditional owner’s group to share the knowledge and expertise of our unique 
Aboriginal communities.

Outcome: ACHIEVED

Alcohol and Other Drugs funded Healing Garden space/building is complete and fully furnished. Covid-19 
has restricted the completion of the external indigenous themed garden which is reliant on aboriginal 
community members input. 
Deliverables 2:

Develop a Reconciliation Action Plan in collaboration with Ka-ree -ta Ngoot-yoong Wat-nan-da (Grow 
Healthy Together) Indigenous Advisory Committee.

Outcome: NOT ACHIEVED

Ka-ree -ta Ngoot-yoong Wat-nan-da Indigenous advisory committee has played a lead role in developing 
a joint collaborative approach to developing the outer western reconciliation plan. 

Survey was circulated March 2020, unfortunately due to Covid-19 this has led to disruption of completion.  
Will be picked up again in 2020/21. 

Addressing Family ViolenceAddressing Family Violence
Achieve:

Strengthen responses to family violence in line with the Multiagency Risk Assessment and Risk Management 
Framework (MARAM) and assist the government in understanding workforce capabilities by championing 
participation in the census of workforces that intersect with family violence.
Deliverable:

Evaluate the effectiveness of family violence training initiatives to develop and implement a plan to 
address identified workforce capability gaps.

Outcome: ACHIEVED

Training completed as organised by South West Healthcare. Plan developed with ongoing training for all 
new staff members and no notable gaps have been identified. 

Action plan completed in collaboration with South West Healthcare.
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Implementing Disability Action PlansImplementing Disability Action Plans
Achieve:

Continue to build upon last year’s action by ensuring implementation and embedding of a Disability 
Action Plan which seeks to reduce barriers, promote inclusion and change attitudes and practices to 
improve the quality of care and employment opportunities for people with disability.
Deliverable:

Finalise the Disability Action Plan and implement the top three priorities by June 2020.

Outcome: ACHIEVED

Draft Disability Action Plan with top priorities submitted to DHHS in June 2019. This will be reported via 
the new Partnering With Consumers committee.

Supporting Environmental SustainabilitySupporting Environmental Sustainability
Achieve:

Contribute to improving the environmental sustainability of the health system by identifying and 
implementing projects and/or processes to reduce carbon emissions 
Deliverable:

Audit waste management practices and implement strategies to reduce the use of plastic across our 
organisation.

Outcome:

Environmental Management working party has been formed commencing in August 2020 with HSE 
members selected via an expression of interest process. 

• Continuation of LED light replacement program throughout the organisation
• Continue to change our motor vehicle fleet to more efficient vehicles with reduced emissions
• Installation of Solar Panels to help reduce our Carbon footprint
• Ramped up recycling program
• As part of a regional project, Theatre has made environmental changes with theatre packs 

Will continue to implement changes organisation wide with the guidance of new environmental working 
party.

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE
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High Quality and Safe CareHigh Quality and Safe Care
Key Performance Indicator Target Result

Accreditation 

Residential aged care compliance Full compliance Full compliance

Infection prevention and control 

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program* 83% 94.7%

Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza 84% 96%

Patient experience

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - data submission Full compliance Full Compliance

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of 
positive patient experience responses - Quarter 1 95% 100%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of 
positive patient experience responses - Quarter 2 95% 98.4%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of 
positive patient experience responses - Quarter 3 95% 95.6%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of very 
positive responses to questions on discharge care - Quarter 1 75% 85.9%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of very 
positive responses to questions on discharge care - Quarter 2 75% 89.9%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of very 
positive responses to questions on discharge care - Quarter 3 75% 85.6%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - patients perception 
of cleanliness - Quarter 1 70% 95.3%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - patients perception 
of cleanliness - Quarter 2 70% 92.9%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - patients perception 
of cleanliness - Quarter 3 70% 90.4%

Adverse events

Sentinel events - root cause analysis (RCA) reporting 100% 100%

Maternity and Newborn

Rate of singleton term infants without birth anomalies with 
APGAR score <7 to 5 minutes ≤ 1.4% 1.7%

Rate of severe foetal growth restriction (FGR) in singleton 
pregnancy undelivered by 40 weeks** ≤ 28.6% n/a

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE

PART B: PERFORMANCE PRIORITIESPART B: PERFORMANCE PRIORITIES

*Quarter 4 data is not available due to COVID-19. Result is based on available data.

**No cases of severe foetal growth restriction in singleton pregnancy recorded.
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Effective Financial ManagementEffective Financial Management
Key Performance Indicator Target Result

Budget Management

Operating result ($m) - 4.0 0.8

Operating result as a percentage of revenue -7.5% 1.5%

Finance

Public and Private WIES1 activity performance to target 100% 94.64%

Net result from transactions variance +/-0.25 0.04

Cash

Average number of days to paying trade creditors 60 days 50 days

Average number of days to receiving patient fee debtors 60 days 30 days

Adjusted current asset ratio 0.70 % 0.69%

Forecast days of cash available 14 days 9.1 days

Actual days of cash 14 days not met

Governance, Leadership and CultureGovernance, Leadership and Culture
Key Performance Indicator Target 19 Result

Organisational culture 

People matter survey - percentage of staff with an overall positive response to 
safety and culture questions 80% 92%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “I am encouraged by my colleagues to report any patient safety 
concerns I may have”

80% 98%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “Patient care errors are handled appropriately in my work area” 80% 96%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “My suggestions about patient safety would be acted upon if I 
expressed them to my manager”

80% 93%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “The culture in my work area makes it easy to learn from the errors of 
others”

80% 89%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “Management is driving us to be a safety-centred organisation” 80% 95%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “This health service does a good job of training new and existing staff” 80% 86%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, "Trainees in my discipline are adequately supervised" 80% 87%

People matter survey - percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, "I would recommend a friend or relative to be treated as a patient here" 80% 92%

1 WIES is a Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE
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PART C: ACTIVITY AND FUNDINGPART C: ACTIVITY AND FUNDING
Funding type 2019/20  

Activity Achievement
Acute Admitted

WIES Public 2528

WIES Private 473

WIES DVA 43

WIES TAC 5

Acute Non-Admitted

Home Enteral Nutrition 1

Specialist Clinics 5505

Subacute & Non-Acute Admitted

Maintenance Public 46

Subacute WIES - Palliative Care Public 11

Subacute WIES - Palliative Care Private 2

Subacute WIES - DVA 2

Transition Care - Bed days 1424

Transition Care - Home days 396

Subacute Non-Admitted

Health Independence Program - Public 4952

Aged Care

Residential Aged Care 10501

HACC

Primary Health

Community Health / Primary Care Programs 18272

FINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCEFINANCIAL & SERVICE PERFORMANCE

A $5000 donation from Qube Ports helped Portland District Health to cope with additional demand for its 
paediatric presentation in the Urgent Care Centre. PDH purchased a paediatric resus trolley and paediatric 
procedure cart which have become essential since employing Dr Britta Baade as its full-time paediatrician.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION 
I Dr Andrew Levings, Board President on behalf of the Responsible Body5, certify that Portland District 
Health has no Material Compliance Deficiency with respect to the applicable Standing Directions under 
the Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions.

DR ANDREW LEVINGS
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT 
Portland District Health Date: 30 July 2020

ATTESTATIONSATTESTATIONS
DATA INTEGRITYDATA INTEGRITY
I, Christine Giles certify that Portland District Health has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that reported data reasonably reflects actual performance. Portland District Health 
has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

CONFLICT OF INTERESTCONFLICT OF INTEREST
I, Christine Giles, certify that Portland District Health has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that it has complied with the requirement of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance 
reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) and has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy 
consistent with the minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest 
forms have been completed by all executive staff within Portland District Health and members of the 
Board of Management, and all declared conflicts have been addressed and are being managed. Conflict 
of interest is a standard agenda item for declaration and documenting at each executive board meeting.

INTEGRITY, FRAUD AND CORRUPTIONINTEGRITY, FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
I, Christine Giles, certify that Portland District Health has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that integrity, fraud and corruption risks have been reviewed and addressed at 
Portland District Health during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH PURCHASING VICTORIA (HPV) HEALTH PURCHASING POLICIES COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH PURCHASING VICTORIA (HPV) HEALTH PURCHASING POLICIES 
I, Christine Giles certify that Portland District Health has put in place appropriate internal controls and 
processes to ensure that it has complied with all requirements set out in the HPV Health Purchasing 
Policies including mandatory HPV collective agreements as required by the Health Services Act 1988 
(Vic) and has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year. 

SAFE PATIENT CARE ACT 2015SAFE PATIENT CARE ACT 2015
Portland District Health has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under section 40 of the 
Safe Patient Care Act 2015.

CHRISTINE GILES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Portland District Health Date: 30 July 2020

OUR LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCEOUR LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE
Portland District Health has a statutory obligation to report legislative compliance on a range of matters.

Established under the Health Services Act 1988, Portland District Health today stands as a modern Public 
Health Service evolving from the amalgamation of the Portland and District Community Health Centre and 
Portland and District Hospital on July 1 2003.

MANDATORY REPORTINGMANDATORY REPORTING
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Below: Treatment for skin cancer patients was 
improved at Portland with a new instrument to 
make it easier and less painful to take skin grafts. 
The Peter’s Project Foundation donated $18,000 
to Portland District Health towards a Compressed 
Zimmer Air Dermatone / Zimmer Skin Graft Mesher 
for the treatment and prevention of skin cancer.

ESSENTIAL SERVICES ESSENTIAL SERVICES 
Essential services measures fire, life safety and 
health items installed or constructed in a building 
to ensure adequate levels of fire safety protection. 
Essential safety measures include all traditional 
building fire services such as sprinklers and 
mechanical services, passive fire safety such as 
fire doors, fire rated structures and other building 
infrastructure items such as paths of travel to exits.

The objective of maintenance is to ensure that 
every safety measure continues to perform at the 
same level of operation that existed at the time of 
commissioning and issue of the occupancy permit.

The maintenance of essential safety measures 
involves:
• Ensuring the service is maintained at a level of 

performance specified by the relevant building 
surveyor.

• Periodical inspections and checks in accordance 
with an Australian Standard or other specified 
method.

• Maintaining a record of the maintenance 
inspections and checks in the form of an annual 
essential safety measures report.

MANDATORY REPORTINGMANDATORY REPORTING

Regular auditing of essential services undertaken 
by Stokes Safety and Elliots Fire Safety Services has 
indicated Portland District Health is operating at the 
required level of performance in all areas. 

Portland District Health acknowledges our 
engineering team who are pleased to report that 
all essential safety measures are operating at the 
required level of performance. 

COMMERCIAL APPOINTMENTSCOMMERCIAL APPOINTMENTS
External Auditors: Coffey Hunt (VAGO agent) 
Internal Auditors: HLB Mann Judd
Bankers: National Australian Bank (NAB) and 
Westpac Banking Corporation (WBC)
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COMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTSCOMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTS

Category Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Compliments 12 14 9 15 8 18 18 20 19 6 28 16

Complaints 15 5 12 6 6 12 19 18 4 12 6 12

Acknowledged 
within 5 days 53% 80% 50% 67% 67% 42% 74% 50% 75% 83% 100% 92%

Open >30 days 8 5 5 6 5 3 4 9 10 10 9 9

CONSULTANCIES > $10,000CONSULTANCIES > $10,000

CONSULTANT PURPOSE OF 
CONSULTANCY

TOTAL APPROVED 
PROJECT FEE 

(ex GST)

EXPENDITURE 
2018-19 
(ex GST)

FUTURE 
EXPENDITURE 

(ex GST)

Click Consulting Strategic plan $12,500 $12,500 0

Michael C Rhook 
Consultant Radiology Review $12,773 $12,773 0

Total $25,273 $25,273 0

COMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTSCOMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTS
Feedback may be received in a number of ways, 
including:
• Direct to the health service in writing or verbally
• Via the Health Services Commissioner
• Comment forms around the organisation
• Satisfaction surveys
• Service evaluation
• Focus groups and Consumer Advisory 

Committee

2019/20
Compliments 183 
Complaints 127

Portland District Health values consumer 
participation and encourages both positive and 
negative feedback. The organisation aims to present 
open and accountable services that reassure 
consumers their complaints are welcome and will 
be dealt with fairly and timely. It is acknowledged 
that the organisation will not always be able to 
meet consumer expectations; however consumer 
feedback is seen as an essential component of 
understanding how consumers perceive our 
services. This feedback may be used in determining 
quality improvement initiatives and working 
towards addressing identified gaps.

CONSULTANCIES CONSULTANCIES 
During 2019/20, Portland District Health engaged 
seven consultancies where the total fees payable to 
the consultants were less than $10,000, with a total 
expenditure of $15,295 (excl. GST). 

In 2019/20 there were two consultancies where the 
total fees payable to the consultants were $10,000 
or greater. The total expenditure incurred in relation 
to this consultant is $25,273 (excl GST).

MANDATORY REPORTINGMANDATORY REPORTING

Portland District Health | Annual Report 2019-20 29



DETAILS OF INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) EXPENDITUREDETAILS OF INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) EXPENDITURE

Business As Usual (BAU)  
ICT expenditure Non-Business As Usual (non-BAU) ICT expenditure

(Total=Operational 
expenditure (excluding GST)

(Total=Operational 
expenditure and Capital 

expenditure (excluding GST)

Operational 
expenditure 

(excluding GST)

Capital 
expenditure 

(excluding GST)

$1,462,080 $24,250 $0 $24,250

During 2019/20 Portland District Health ICT Business 
As Usual (BAU) Operational expenditure (excluding 
GST) was $1,462,080 and Capital expenditure 
(excluding GST) was $24,250.

The total ICT expenditure incurred during 2019/20 
is $1,486,330 (excluding GST) with the details shown 
below. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 
Portland District Health Board of Management, 
Executive and staff are committed to protecting the 
environment and ensuring its sustainability. When 
planning changes or improvements, consideration 
is given to conserving energy and water, reducing 
greenhouse emissions and improving waste 
management. 

Our service is committed to implementing sound 
environmental practices in all areas of operations. 
We recognise that it is essential all energy/water 
users and producers of waste, manage these 
aspects to minimise the impact on the environment, 
as well as cost. 

Energy and water usage is reported monthly to the 
Department of Health and Human Services and 
Sustainability Victoria. 

Our key highlights for 2019/20 include:

• Continuation of LED light replacement program 
throughout the organisation

• Continue to change our motor vehicle fleet to 
more efficient vehicles with reduced emissions

• Installation of Solar Panels to help reduce our 
Carbon footprint

Our wonderful and caring staff in Harbourside Lodge Aged Care facility

MANDATORY REPORTINGMANDATORY REPORTING
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ACT 1994FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ACT 1994
In accordance with the direction of the Minister for 
Finance part 9.1.3 (iv), information requirements 
have been prepared and are available to the relevant 
Minister, Members of Parliament and the public on 
request.

HEALTH RECORDS ACT 2001HEALTH RECORDS ACT 2001
The purpose of this Act is to promote fair and 
responsible handling of health information by 
protecting the privacy of an individual’s health 
information. This service observes absolute 
confidentiality in dealing with patient information.

BUILDING ACT 1993BUILDING ACT 1993
Portland District Health complies with the 
provisions of the Building Act 1993 in accordance 
with the Department of Health Capital Development 
Guidelines (Minister for Finance Guideline Building 
Act 1993 / Standards for Publicly Owned Buildings 
1994 / Building Regulations 2005 and Building Code 
of Australia 2004).
Current planning and status of capital works:
• Capital improvements to indoor and outdoor 

space at Harbourside Lodge – on hold due to 
COVID-19

• Construction of Healing Room/Garden as 
a result of successful funding from DHHS 
Alcohol and Other Drugs department – building 
completed with garden area to commence 20/21 
year. 

• Installation of new transportation lift – tender 
process complete, delayed due to COVID-19, 
expected to be installed 20/21 year. 

PROTECTING YOUR PRIVACYPROTECTING YOUR PRIVACY
Portland District Health complies with the provisions 
of the Health Services Act 1988 (No.49/1988), the 
Health Records Act 2001 (No.2/2001) and the 
Information Privacy Act 2000 (No.98/2000) relating 
to confidentiality and privacy by ensuring that 
all employees do not disclose any information 
or records concerning Portland District Health’s 
patients, clients, staff and customers acquired in 
the course of their employment, other than for any 
authorised or lawful purpose.

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE ACT 2012PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE ACT 2012
Portland District Health has in place appropriate 
procedures for disclosure in accordance with the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012. No protected 
disclosures were made under the Act in 2019/2020.

NATIONAL COMPETITION POLICYNATIONAL COMPETITION POLICY
The Victorian Government’s Competitive Neutrality 
policy commits public health services to apply this 
policy to all dealings. This includes the adoption of 
pricing principles to take account of the full cost 
attribution for net competitive advantage conferred 
by government ownership.
The policy gives direction that where government 
business activities involve it in competition with 
private sector business activities, the net advantages 
that accrue to government business are offset.

LOCAL JOBS FIRST ACT 2003 LOCAL JOBS FIRST ACT 2003 
In 2019/20 there were no contracts requiring 
disclosure under the Local Jobs First Policy.

STATEMENT OF MERIT AND EQUITYSTATEMENT OF MERIT AND EQUITY
The Victorian Government’s Merit and Equity 
principles are considered in our recruitment, 
advertising and selection of employees. Portland 
District Health complies with employment 
conditions as specified in relevant Health Awards 
and Enterprise Bargaining Agreements. The 
employment of staff satisfies equal employment 
opportunity requirements, legislative and moral 
obligations, and terms and conditions of the Fair 
Work Act, Australia including National Employment 
Standards.

TAX DEDUCTIBLE GIFTSTAX DEDUCTIBLE GIFTS
Portland District Health is endorsed by the Australian 
Taxation Office as a Deductible Gift Recipient. Gifts 
to Portland District Health, a public health service, 
qualify for a tax deduction under item 1 .1.1 of 
section 3-BA of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATIONFREEDOM OF INFORMATION
A total of 41 requests under the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982 were processed during 
2019/20 with 1 requests denied and information 
not granted. Portland District Health’s nominated 
officers under the Freedom of Information Act are: 
Principal Officer: Christine Giles; Chief Executive, 
FOI Officers: Casey Mills; Electronic Health Records 
Support Officer and Casey Scott; Health Information 
Manager. 

FEES AND CHARGESFEES AND CHARGES
Portland District Health charges fees in accordance 
with the Commonwealth Department of Health 
and Aged Care, the Commonwealth Department of 
Family Services and the Department of Health and 
Human Services directives, issued under Regulation 
8 of the Hospital and Charities (Fees) Regulations 
1986 as amended.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCESTATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCESTATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ACT 2004 COMPLIANCEOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY ACT 2004 COMPLIANCE
Portland District Health complies with the Occupational Health & Safety Act of 2004 and its associated 
regulations and code of practice to meet the Australian Council of Health Care Standards requirement. 
Portland District Health is committed to providing a safe and healthy environment for patients, residents, 
staff, visitors, volunteers and contractors under the auspices of the Health Safety and Environment 
Committee.  Our commitment is to facilitate effective consultation across all sections of Portland District 
Health which is essential to improve Health & Safety performance. 

All staff injuries and hazards in the workplace are reported and followed up via the ‘RiskMan’, an electronic 
incident management system available to all staff. We support our staff both in the provision of training to 
reduce risk of injury and, if an injury does occur, a comprehensive return to work program. 

Occupational, Health & Safety training continues to occur on a regular basis throughout the Health Service. 
All health and safety representatives have attended health and safety training.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY REPORTING 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 
(JUL 17 - MAR 18)

1. Reported hazards/incidents per 100 full-time FTE 51.72 63.38 43.39

2. Number of lost time per 100 full-time FTE (Standard claims) 1.0 1.32 1.11

3. Average cost per claim as advised by WorkSafe $25,637 $66, 288 $25,911

There was a slight reduction in the number of time lost WorkCover claims from 2018-2019. Although the same 
number of accepted standard claims were reported in 2018/2019 compared to 2019/2020, the statistical case 
estimate of the claims lodged in 2018/2019 was significantly higher. Our WorkCover performance rating is 
currently 13.46% better than the industry average. 

CARERS RECOGNITION ACT 2012 CARERS RECOGNITION ACT 2012 
The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes and values the role of people in care relationships. 
Portland District Health understands the different needs of persons in care relationships and that care 
relationships bring benefits to the patients, their carers and to the community. 

Portland District Health takes all practicable measures to ensure that its employees, agents and carers have 
awareness and understanding of the care relationship principles and this is reflected in our commitment to a 
model of patient and family centred care and to involving carers in the development and delivery of our services.  

CHRISTINE GILES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Date: 30 July 2020

Chris Giles - PDH CEO, Rachel Watson - Pacific Hydro CEO  
and Mike Noske - Keppel Prince Engineering.

Right: Pacific Hydro donated 
$110,000 to the $500,000 
320 KW solar panel project 
which consists of 1074 solar 
panels that are already 
creating significant savings 
and improvements. 
The panels are expected to 
reduce the health service’s 
environmental impact and 
wipe $73,540 off PDH’s 
annual power bill.
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENTBOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Portland District Health is governed by Board 
Directors appointed by the Minister for Health.  The 
Board of Management is responsible for the overall 
governance of the Health Service; this includes 
setting the strategic direction and monitoring 
performance.

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEESGOVERNANCE COMMITTEES
The Board is a strong advocate of corporate and 
clinical governance and seeks to ensure that the 
Health Service fulfils its governance obligations and 
responsibilities to all its stakeholders.

To assist the Board in the discharge of its 
responsibilities, it has established a number of 
committees. The Board’s advisory committees are:

QUALITY, SAFETY & CLINICAL RISK MANAGEMENT QUALITY, SAFETY & CLINICAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE – – meets monthly meets monthly 
The committee’s primary function is to assist the 
Board of Management to ensure a high standard of 
health care, a continuous improvement of service 
delivery, and to maintain an environment that 
supports clinical excellence across Portland District 
Health. 

The committee reviews and makes recommendations 
to the Board of Management to:
• Ensure provision of safe, high quality care in 

accordance with Safer Care Victoria
• Mitigate Portland District Health’s clinical risks 

and ensure a Clinical Risk Management Plan is in 
place and reviewed annually

• Evaluate the processes in place to continuously 
improve, particularly in those areas related to 
high and significant risk.

External/Consumer Members: Pamela Stringer

FINANCE, AUDIT AND CORPORATE RISK COMMITTEE FINANCE, AUDIT AND CORPORATE RISK COMMITTEE 
– – meets monthlymeets monthly
The Finance, Audit & Risk Committee recommends 
and advises the Board of Management on financial, 
investment, building and commercial matters. 

Section 65S of the Health Services Act 1988 requires 
the Board of a public health service to ensure that its 
audit and accounting systems accurately reflect the 
financial position and viability of the health service, 
and that effective and accountable non clinical risk 
management systems are in place.

The committee ensures also the Corporate Risk and 
Management Plan is in place and reviewed regularly.

External members: Mark Hutchinson and Paulina 
Silbernagel

WORKFORCE, CULTURE & DEVELOPMENT WORKFORCE, CULTURE & DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE – – meets monthly meets monthly 
The committee’s primary function recommends and 
advises the Board of Management on issues relating 
to workforce, culture and staff development. It 
provides strategic advice on workforce strategy, 
policy and practices to ensure that the organisation 
is managing its workforce issues effectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE – – meets twice yearlymeets twice yearly
The Remuneration Committee ensure that 
remuneration policies and practices are consistent 
with government policy and undertakes a CEO 
performance review annually.

It reviews on an annual basis the remuneration of 
the CEO including establishing the overall benefits 
and incentives.

OTHER BOARD ADVISORY COMMITTEESOTHER BOARD ADVISORY COMMITTEES
CONSUMER ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONSUMER ADVISORY COMMITTEE – – meets bimonthlymeets bimonthly
This committee provides advice to Portland District 
Health to reflect consumer, carers and community 
views in our service delivery, planning and policy 
development.

GROW HEALTHY TOGETHER GROW HEALTHY TOGETHER 
'KA-REE-TA NGOOT-YOONG WAT-NAN-DA’ 'KA-REE-TA NGOOT-YOONG WAT-NAN-DA’ 
INDIGENOUS ADVISORY COMMITTEE INDIGENOUS ADVISORY COMMITTEE – – meets quarterlymeets quarterly
‘Ka ree ta Ngoot yoong Wat nan da’ Grow Healthy 
Together Indigenous advisory committee is a 
collaboration between Traditional Gunditjmara 
owners, local Aboriginal Health controlled 
organisations and local Health services.

Ka ree ta Ngoot yoong Wat nan da is bringing the 
people in the local community together to yarn 
about and action initiatives to improve health and 
wellbeing of the first nation people.

CREDENTIALING & SCOPE OF PRACTICE (MEDICAL CREDENTIALING & SCOPE OF PRACTICE (MEDICAL 
APPOINTMENT) COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT) COMMITTEE – – meets quarterly or as meets quarterly or as 
required as part of the SW Health Accord regional committeerequired as part of the SW Health Accord regional committee
This committee regulates the appointment, 
credentialing and definition of scope of clinical 
practice of health practitioners who provide services 
to the PDH and related Health Services

PROJECT CONTROL GROUP PROJECT CONTROL GROUP – – as neededas needed
These committees have the primary responsibility 
for overseeing capital redevelopment projects. 
They determine the scope, quality, time and budget 
standards and monitor the progress of the projects 
against these standards

GOVERNANCEGOVERNANCE
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EXECUTIVE ROLEEXECUTIVE ROLE
Responsibility for the management and operation 
of Portland District Health is delegated to the Chief 
Executive Officer who is accountable to the Board of 
Management and who operates within clearly defined 
delegation levels. The management is made up of the 
Chief Executive Officer, Director of Nursing, Director of 
Corporate Services, Director of Primary Care Services, 
Director of Medical Services, Director of Health 
Informatics, Director of Quality & Safety and Finance 
Manager. The Executive meets weekly and provides 
monthly reports to the Board of Management.

RESPONSIBLE MINISTERRESPONSIBLE MINISTER
The responsible Ministers during 2019/20 for 
Portland District Health:
Hon Jenny Mikakos MP 
Minister for Health & Minister for Ambulance Services
Hon Martin Foley MP 
Minister for Mental Health
Hon Richard Colbeck 
Minister for Aged Care and Senior Australians

ETHICAL STANDARDSETHICAL STANDARDS
The Board of Management promotes the continued 
maintenance of corporate governance practice and 
ethical conduct by Board directors and employees 
of Portland District Health. The Board has endorsed 
a code of conduct which applies to Board directors, 
officers and all employees.

PECUNIARY INTERESTPECUNIARY INTEREST
Members of the Board of Management of Portland 
District Health are required to notify the President of 
the Board of any pecuniary interests which might give 
rise to a conflict of interest in accordance with Portland 
District Health policy and the Board’s code of conduct. 
All necessary declarations have been completed.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  
AVAILABLE ON REQUESTAVAILABLE ON REQUEST
Details in respect of the items listed below have been 
retained by the health service and are available to 
the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and 
the public on request (subject to the freedom of 
information requirements, if applicable):
• Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly 

completed by all relevant officers;
• Details of shares held by senior officers as 

nominee or held beneficially;
• Details of publications produced by the entity 

about itself, and how these can be obtained;
• Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates 

and levies charged by the Health Service;
• Details of any major external reviews carried out 

on the Health Service;
• Details of major research and development 

activities undertaken by the Health Service that 
are not otherwise covered either in the report of 
operations or in a document that contains the 
financial statements and report of operations;

• Details of overseas visits undertaken including a 
summary of the objectives and outcomes of each 
visit;

• Details of major promotional, public relations 
and marketing activities undertaken by the 
Health Service to develop community awareness 
of the Health Service and its services;

• Details of assessments and measures 
undertaken to improve the occupational health 
and safety of employees;

• A general statement on industrial relations 
within the Health Service and details of time 
lost through industrial accidents and disputes, 
which is not otherwise detailed in the report of 
operations; 

• A list of major committees sponsored by the 
Health Service, the purposes of each committee 
and the extent to which those purposes have 
been achieved;

• Details of all consultancies and contractors 
including consultants/contractors engaged, 
services provided, and expenditure committed 
for each engagement.

GOVERNANCEGOVERNANCE

Left: Carmel Birch suffered a severe asthma attack 
that developed into pneumonia and she was 
required to make two significant changes that 
saved her life. Firstly, she gave up smoking, then 
she started to exercise and joined Portland District 
Health’s pulmonary rehabilitation program with 
Luise Macklin, Rehab coordinator.
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DONATIONSDONATIONS

SIGNIFICANT PARTNERSHIP RECOGNITIONSIGNIFICANT PARTNERSHIP RECOGNITION
United Way Glenelg  $15,000
• Singing Strong Project (Harbourside Lodge) 
• Covid-19 Impact Fund (Community Assistance) 
• Good Samaritan Fund (Community Assistance) 
• Resus Anne QCPR mannequin (Education) 

Anti Cancer Council of Victoria, Portland Unit  $8,980
• Vein Finder  $3,500

Qube Ports - Paediatric Equipment (UCC) $5,000
Murray to Moyne:
• White Lioners’ Team, Portland Lions Club 
• Floggin’ a Dead Horse Team 

Rotary Beats Cycle for Hope  
“Random act of kindness” gift cards
Portland & District Motoring Enthusiasts Club Inc - 
Cruise for Charity

PDH DONATIONS ($50+ AND IN KIND)PDH DONATIONS ($50+ AND IN KIND)
Admellas Fruit & Vegetables
Aldi Portland
Amanda Kohlman
Amcal Pharmacy Portland
ANZ Portland
Arrow Fisheries
Assets Real Estate
Bakers Delight Portland
Beats Cycle for Hope
Brianna Dark
Caroline Walder
Cooper Energy
CWA Portland
CR & BJ Langley
Filipino Community of Portland
Friday Stitches
Gail Baulch
Gordon Hotel
IGA Portland
In memory of Gregory Frost
In memory of Helen Millard
In memory of Rocela Stanton
Jeanette Beauglehole
Jim Shepherd
Joy Ahearn
June Nash
Keppel Prince Engineering Pty Ltd
Kylie Dempsey
Laurence & Hanson
Lido Larder Portland
Lions Club of Portland
Lyn Imbi
M & S Wiese
Margaret Mewett
Marie Malseed
Matt Haymes

Portland Community Centre
Portland Community Markets
Portland Golf Club
Portland RSL Memorial Bowling Club
Portland Signworks
Portland Unit, Anti-Cancer Council of Victoria
Portland Vintage Car Club
Qube Ports
R & C Walder
Robyn Tuffnell
Rod & Kaye Stoneman
Rotary Club of Portland
Rotary Club of Portland Bay
RSL Sub Branch
Rudolfo Bucovaz
SES Portland Unit
South West Tafe Community Chest
Tony Rogers
Tutt Bryant Hire
Uniting Church Portland
Veronica Kerridge
Wattle Creek CWA
Welcome Home Giftware
William Adams
Woolworths Portland

MAJOR BALL DAY SPONSORSMAJOR BALL DAY SPONSORS
Portland Funeral Services
Great Ocean Logistics
Gordon Hotel
On the Run
One Forty One Plantation
Porthaul Transport
Portland Exhaust 4x4
Gazebo Hair
Narelle Petch
Leanne Stock
Portland Signworks

MAJOR GOLF DAY SPONSORSMAJOR GOLF DAY SPONSORS
Janah Administration - KFC
Salary Packaging Plus
ABP - Australian Bluegum Plantations Pty Ltd
Ace Radio 3HA/MixxFM
Assets Real Estate
Bendigo Radiology
C3 Limited
Clock by the Bay/Clock on the Course
Force 8 Contractors
Qube Ports
Veolia Waste
Portland Signworks
Taipan Security

Portland District Health | Annual Report 2019-20 35



OTHER GOLF DAY FINANCIAL SPONSORSOTHER GOLF DAY FINANCIAL SPONSORS
All Saints Parish School
Chillmech Services
G & A White
Helloworld Travel
National Australia Bank
Portland Golf Club
Portland RSL Club
Port of Portland
PDH Executive Team
Say No to Family Violence
South Portland Pharmacy
Terri Cain
Victoria Lodge Motor Inn

IN-KIND GOLF DAY DONATIONSIN-KIND GOLF DAY DONATIONS
Admellas Fruit & Veg
Amcal pharmacy
ANZ Portland
Bay City Events Blues Train 
Betta Electrical Portland
Cape Nelson Lighthouse Accommodation
Captain Cook Cruises
Christo Rook - music
Crown Charity and Sponsorship Committee
Gardenlife Nursery
Gordon Hotel
Gunners Surf & Sport
Hallidays Butchers
Hammonds Paint
Ivie & Eve
Intimate Apparel
Kevin Hughes
M & S Wiese
Macs Hotel

IN-KIND GOLF DAY DONATIONS CONTINUEDIN-KIND GOLF DAY DONATIONS CONTINUED
Margaret & Agnes
Nancy Grant
Nathan 
Pauline’s Absolutely Fabulous
Petals florist
Port of Portland
Portland Florist
Portland Golf Club
Portland Observer
Port of Portland
Powerhouse Productions
Quest Portland
Richard Tarr
Ruby Lola Design
Seaview Real Estate
South West Fibre Pty Ltd
Square Mile Estate
Sweetwater Aquatics
Treloar Roses
Twilight Cinema
Wannon Water
Weldgas Portland

PDH ANNUAL FUNDRAISERS PDH ANNUAL FUNDRAISERS 
PDH Golf Day Fundraiser  $21,966
PDH Hospital Ball $10,000
PDH Community Market/Fete $9,261

APPRECIATIONAPPRECIATION
Portland District Health extends its sincere appreciation 
to the staff, volunteers and the many individual and in-
memoriam donors for their generous support during 
2019/20.  Due to your generosity and commitment, we 
are able to continue to provide a high quality service to 
our community.

DONATIONSDONATIONS

Beautiful L’Oreal Gift Packs donated by  
L’Oreal to frontline nurses during Covid-19
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The annual report of the Portland District Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian 
legislation.  This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with 
statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation Requirement Page Reference

Ministerial Directions - Report of Operations

Charter and purpose
FRD 22H Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 34
FRD 22H Purpose, functions, powers and duties  Inside Front Cover
FRD 22H Nature and range of services provided 11
FRD 22H Activities, programs and achievements for the reporting period 02-05
FRD 22H Significant changes in key Initiatives and expectations for the future. 02-05

Management and structure
FRD 22H Organisational structure  10
FRD 22H Workforce data / employment and conduct principles 13
FRD 22H Occupational Health and Safety 32

Financial information
FRD 22H Summary of the financial results for the year 07
FRD 22H Significant changes in financial position during the year 06
FRD 22H Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives 06
FRD 22H Subsequent events Financials 
FRD 22H Details of consultancies under $10,000  29
FRD 22H Details of consultancies over $10,000  29
FRD 22H Disclosure of ICT expenditure 30

Legislation
FRD 22H Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982  31
FRD 22H Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 31
FRD 22H Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012 31
FRD 22H Statement on National Competition Policy  31
FRD 22H Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 32
FRD 22H Summary of the entity’s environmental performance 30
FRD 22H Additional information available on request 34

Other relevant reporting directives
FRD 25D Local Jobs First Act disclosures 31
SD 5.1.4 Financial Management Compliance Attestation 27
SD 5.2.3 Declaration in report of operations 07

Attestations
Attestation on Data Integrity 27
Attestation on managing, Conflict of Interest 27
Attestation on Integrity, fraud and corruption 27

Other reporting requirements 
Reporting of outcomes from Statement of Priorities 2019-20 18-26
Occupational Violence reporting 15
Reporting of compliance Health Purchasing Victoria policy 27
Reporting obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act 2015 27

DISCLOSURE INDEXDISCLOSURE INDEX
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Annual Financial Statements
Year Ended 30 June 2020

ABN 19 736 725 377
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Board of Portland District Health 

Opinion I have audited the consolidated financial report of Portland District Health (the health service) and its 
controlled entities (together the consolidated entity), which comprises the: 

• consolidated entity and health service balance sheets as at 30 June 2020 
• consolidated entity and health service comprehensive operating statements for the year then 

ended 
• consolidated entity and health service statements of changes in equity for the year then ended 
• consolidated entity and health service cash flow statements for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• board member’s, accountable officer's and chief finance and accounting officer’s declaration. 

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial positions of the 
consolidated entity and the health service as at 30 June 2020 and their financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 7 of the 
Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the Australian 
Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent of the 
health service and the consolidated entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the 
Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 

Board’s 
responsibilities 
for the financial 
report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial Management Act 1994, and 
for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service and the 
consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 

Other 
Information 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the Other Information, which comprises the 
information in the health service’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020, but does not include 
the financial report and my auditor’s report thereon.   

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the Other Information and accordingly, I do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion on the Other Information. However, in connection with my 
audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the Other Information and in doing so, consider 
whether it is materially inconsistent with the financial report or the knowledge I obtained during the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I 
conclude there is a material misstatement of the Other Information, I am required to report that fact.  I 
have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit of 
the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based 
on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the health service and the consolidated entity’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the health service and the consolidated entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required 
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the health service and the consolidated entity to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation 

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the health service and consolidated entity to express an opinion on the 
financial report. I remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
of the health service and the consolidated entity. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify 
during my audit. 

 

MELBOURNE 
9 October 2020 

Travis Derricott 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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PPOORRTTLLAANNDD  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  HHEEAALLTTHH  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr  EEnnddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

CCOOMMPPRREEHHEENNSSIIVVEE  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  FFOORR  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  YYEEAARR  EENNDDEEDD  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

NNoottee  
PPaarreenntt  
EEnnttiittyy  

PPaarreenntt  
EEnnttiittyy  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  

22002200  22001199  22002200  22001199  
$$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

Operating Activities 2.1 51,898 50,525 53,719 52,318 

Non-operating Activities 2.1 351 49 415 53 

Other Income 2.1 

TToottaall  IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  5522,,224499  5500,,557744  5544,,113344  5522,,337711  

EExxppeennsseess  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

Employee expenses 3.1 (39,176) (36,708) (40,811) (38,247) 

Supplies and consumables 3.1 (5,966) (6,014) (6,000) (6,086) 

Finance Costs 3.1 (8) (42) (8) (45) 

Depreciation and Amortisation 4.2 (3,892) (3,478) (3,904) (3,495) 

Other Operating Expenses 3.1 (5,799) (5,542) (5,967) (5,691) 

TToottaall  EExxppeennsseess  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  ((5544,,884411))  ((5511,,778844))  ((5566,,669900))  ((5533,,556644))  

NNeett  RReessuulltt  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  ––  NNeett  OOppeerraattiinngg ((22,,559966))  ((11,,221100))    ((22,,555566))  ((11,,119933))  

OOtthheerr  EEccoonnoommiicc  FFlloowwss  iinncclluuddeedd  iinn  NNeett  RReessuulltt  

Net Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Financial Assets 3.2 (502) 16 (502) 16 

Share of Other Economic Flows from 
Joint Operation 3.2 1 3 1 3 

Other gain/(loss) from economic flows 3.2 (8) (174) (9) (174) 

Net gain/ (loss) on financial assets 3.2 (61) (20) (61) (20) 

TToottaall  OOtthheerr  EEccoonnoommiicc  FFlloowwss  iinncclluuddeedd  iinn  NNeett  
RReessuulltt ((557700))  ((117755))  ((557711))  ((117755))  

NNeett  RReessuulltt  ffoorr  tthhee  YYeeaarr  ((33,,116666))  ((11,,338855))  ((33,,112277))  ((11,,336688))  

OOtthheerr  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  IInnccoommee 

IItteemmss  tthhaatt  wwiillll  nnoott  bbee  rreeccllaassssiiffiieedd  ttoo  nneett  rreessuulltt  

Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus  4.1f  0 6,735 0 6,735 

TToottaall  OOtthheerr  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  iinnccoommee  00  66,,773355  00  66,,773355  

CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  RReessuulltt  ((33,,116666))  55,,335500  ((33,,112277))  55,,336677  

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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PPOORRTTLLAANNDD  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  HHEEAALLTTHH  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr  EEnnddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

BBAALLAANNCCEE  SSHHEEEETT  AASS  AATT  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

NNoottee  
PPaarreenntt  
EEnnttiittyy  

PPaarreenntt  
EEnnttiittyy  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  

22002200  22001199  22002200  22001199  
$$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

AASSSSEETTSS  
CCuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 5,314 4,672 5,783 5,153 
Receivables 5.1 1,143 1,227 1,259 1,308 
Investments accounted for using the equity 
method 8.9 86 84 86 84 
Inventories 84 85 84 85 
Prepayments and Other assets 587 754 602 768 
TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss  77,,221144  66,,882222  77,,881144  77,,339988  
NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss  
Receivables 5.1 142 87 142 87 
Property, Plant & Equipment 4.1 61,676 64,092 61,693 64,112 
Investment properties 4.3 2,640 3,120 2,640 3,120 
TToottaall  nnoonn--ccuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss 6644,,445588  6677,,229999  6644,,447744  6677,,331199  
TTOOTTAALL  AASSSSEETTSS  7711,,667722  7744,,112222  7722,,228899  7744,,771177  
LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS  
CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
Payables  5.2  3,291 3,868 3,417 4,068 
Borrowings 6.1 2,035 1,127 2,035 1,172 
Provisions 3.4 6,266 5,598 6,348 5,668 
Other liabilities 5.3 2,189 2,690 2,189 2,633 
TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 1133,,778822  1133,,332288  1133,,999900  1133,,554411  
NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
Borrowings 6.1 420 287 420  287 
Provisions 3.4 1,741 1,553 1,789 1,613 
TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 22,,116611  11,,884400  22,,221100  11,,990000  
TTOOTTAALL  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS  1155,,994433  1155,,116688  1166,,220000  1155,,444411  
NNEETT  AASSSSEETTSS  5555,,772299  5588,,995544  5566,,008899  5599,,227766  
EEQQUUIITTYY  
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus  4.1f  50,728 50,728 50,728 50,728 
Restricted specific purpose surplus 858 858 858 858 
Contributed capital 35,695 35,695 35,695 35,695 
Accumulated (deficits) (31,552) (28,327) (31,192) (28,005) 
TTOOTTAALL  EEQQUUIITTYY 5555,,772299  5588,,995544  5566,,008899  5599,,227766  
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities  7.2 
Commitments 6.3 

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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PPOORRTTLLAANNDD  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  HHEEAALLTTHH  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr  EEnnddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCHHAANNGGEESS  IINN  EEQQUUIITTYY  FFOORR  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  YYEEAARR  EENNDDEEDD  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  NNoottee  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  &&  
EEqquuiippmmeenntt  

RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  SSuurrpplluuss  

RReessttrriicctteedd  
SSppeecciiffiicc  

PPuurrppoossee  
SSuurrpplluuss  

CCoonnttrriibbuutteedd  
CCaappiittaall  

AAccccuummuullaatteedd  
((DDeeffiicciittss))  

TToottaall  

$$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

BBaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJuullyy  22001188  4433,,999933  885588  3355,,669955  ((2266,,663366))  5533,,991100  

Net result for the year - -     -  (1,368) (1,368) 
Other comprehensive income 
or the year 6,735 - - - 6,735 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22001199  5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((2288,,000055))  5599,,227766  
Effect of adoption of AASB 
15,16,1058 

8.1 
(60) (60) 

RRee--ssttaatteedd  bbaallaannccee  3300  JJuunnee  22001199  ((2288,,006655))  5599,,221166  

Net result for the year - -  - (3,127)  (3,127) 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((3311,,119922))  5566,,008899  
PPaarreenntt  NNoottee  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  &&  

EEqquuiippmmeenntt  
RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  SSuurrpplluuss  

RReessttrriicctteedd  
SSppeecciiffiicc  

PPuurrppoossee  
SSuurrpplluuss  

CCoonnttrriibbuutteedd  
CCaappiittaall  

AAccccuummuullaatteedd    
((DDeeffiicciittss))  

TToottaall  

$$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

BBaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJuullyy  22001188      4433,,999933  885588    3355,,669955      ((2266,,994422))  5533,,660044  

Net result for the year -     -     -  (1,385) (1,385) 
Other comprehensive income 
or the year  6,735 - - - 6,735 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22001199  5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((2288,,332266))  5588,,995544  
Effect of adoption of AASB 
15, 16, 1058 

8.1 
(60) (60) 

RRee--ssttaatteedd  bbaallaannccee  3300  JJuunnee  22001199  ((2288,,338866))  5588,,889944  

Net result for the year - -  - (3,166) (3,166) 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((3311,,555522))  5555,,772299  
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CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWW  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  FFOORR  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  YYEEAARR  EENNDDEEDD  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

NNoottee  PPaarreenntt  
EEnnttiittyy  

PPaarreenntt  
EEnnttiittyy  
22001199  

$$''000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatt
eedd  

CCoonnssoolliidd
aatteedd  
22001199  

$$''000000  

22002200  22002200  

$$''000000  $$''000000  
CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  FFRROOMM  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  
Operating Grants from Government 43,184 39,633 43,214 39,646 
Capital Grants from Government 256 1,255 256 1,255 
Patient and Resident Fees Received 8,383 8,176 9,580 9,534 
Donations and Bequests Received 109 400 109 400 
GST Received from/(paid to) ATO 1,242 1,230 1,242 1,254 
Interest Received 42 57 46 61 
Other Receipts 1,109 479 1,822 935 
TTOOTTAALL  RREECCEEIIPPTTSS  5544,,332255  5511,,223300  5566,,226699  5533,,008855  
Employee Expenses Paid (33,688) (30,406) (35,038) (31,762) 
Non Salary Labour Costs (5,480) (5720) (5,878) (5,908) 
Payments for Supplies & Consumables (13,799) (12,807) (14,007) (13,076) 
Finance Costs (11) (37) (11) (37) 
Cash outflow for leases (69) - (69) - 
TTOOTTAALL  PPAAYYMMEENNTTSS  ((5533,,004477))  ((4488,,997700))  ((5555,,000033))  ((5500,,778833))  
NNEETT  CCAASSHH  IINNFFLLOOWW  FFRROOMM  //  ((UUSSEEDD  IINN))  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  
AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  88..11  11,,227788  22,,226600  11,,226666  22,,330022  

CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  FFRROOMM  IINNVVEESSTTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS 
Purchase for Non-Financial Assets (1,473) (1,454) (1,473) (1,454) 
Capital donations and Bequests received 129 - 129 - 
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Financial Assets 20 18 20 18 
NNEETT  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWW  FFRROOMM//((UUSSEEDD  IINN))  IINNVVEESSTTIINNGG  
AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  ((11,,332244))  ((11,,443366))  ((11,,332244))  ((11,,443366))  

CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  FFRROOMM  FFIINNAANNCCIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS 
Proceeds from borrowings 1,867 176 1867 176 
Repayment of borrowings (722) (300) (722) (300) 
Receipt of Accommodation Deposits 112 647 112 647 
Repayment of Accommodation Deposits (569) (385) (569) (385) 
NNEETT  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWW  FFRROOMM//((UUSSEEDD  IINN))  FFIINNAANNCCIINNGG  
AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  668888  113388  668888  113388  
NNeett  iinnccrreeaassee//  ((ddeeccrreeaassee))  iinn  ccaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss  hheelldd  664422  996622  663300  11,,000044  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 4,672 3,710 5,153 4,149 
CCAASSHH  AANNDD  CCAASSHH  EEQQUUIIVVAALLEENNTTSS  AATT  EENNDD  OOFF  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  
YYEEAARR  66..22  55,,331144  44,,667722  55,,778833  55,,115533  

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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NNOOTTEE  11::  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Portland 
District Health and its controlled entity for the year ended 30 June 2020. The purpose of the report is to provide 
users with information about the Health Services’ stewardship of resources entrusted to it. 

AA.. SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCOOMMPPLLIIAANNCCEE

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance 
with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASs), which include 
interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner 
consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. 

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the 
Department of Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions authorised by the Assistant Treasurer. 

The Portland District Health is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs 
applicable to “not-for-profit” Health Services under the AAS’s.  

BB.. RREEPPOORRTTIINNGG  EENNTTIITTYY

The financial statements include all the controlled activities of the Portland District Health. 

Its principal address is: 
Bentinck Street, Portland, VIC 3305 

A description of the nature of Portland District Health’s operations and its principal activities is included in the 
report of operations, which does not form part of these financial statements. 

CC.. BBAASSIISS  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPRREEPPAARRAATTIIOONN  AANNDD  MMEEAASSUURREEMMEENNTT

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying 
transactions or other events is reported. 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2020, and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 
June 2019. 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Note 8.10 Economic Dependency). 

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of 
Portland District Health. 

BBAASSIISS  OOFF  PPRREEPPAARRAATTIIOONN  

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and the historical cost convention is used unless a 
different measurement basis is specifically disclosed in the note associated with the item measured on a different 
basis. 

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets, 
liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 
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All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless 
otherwise stated. Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding. 

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when 
they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for these items, that is they are recognised in the reporting 
period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
professional judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future 
periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application 
of AABSs that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:  

• The fair value of land, buildings and plant and equipment (refer to Note 4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment);

• Defined benefit superannuation expense (refer to Note 3.5 Superannuation); and

• Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary
movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 3.4 Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet).

A state of emergency was declared in Victoria on 16 March 2020 due to the global coronavirus pandemic, known 
as COVID-19. A state of disaster was subsequently declared on 2 August 2020. To contain the spread of the virus 
and to prioritise the health and safety of our communities various restrictions have been announced and 
implemented by the state government, which in turn has impacted the manner in which businesses operate, 
including Portland District Health. 

In response, Portland District Health placed restrictions on non-essential visitors, implemented reduced visitor 
hours, deferred elective surgery and reduced activity, performed COVID-19 testing and implemented work from 
home arrangements where appropriate. For further details refer to Note 2.1 Funding delivery of our services. 

GGOOOODDSS  AANNDD  SSEERRVVIICCEESS  TTAAXX  ((GGSSTT))  
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet.  

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing 
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow. 

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis. 

DD.. JJOOIINNTTLLYY  CCOONNTTRROOLLLLEEDD  OOPPEERRAATTIIOONN
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions 
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. In respect of any 
interest in joint operations, Portland District Health Service recognises in the financial statements: 

• its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
• any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it had incurred;
• its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;
• its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and
• its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
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Portland District Health Service is a member of the South West Alliance of Rural Health Joint Venture and retains 
joint control over the arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation (refer to Note 8.8 Jointly Controlled 
Operations) 

EE.. PPRRIINNCCIIPPLLEESS  OOFF  CCOONNSSOOLLIIDDAATTIIOONN

These statements are presented on a consolidated basis in accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated Financial 
Statements: 

• The consolidated financial statements of Portland District Health include all reporting entities controlled by
Portland District Health as at 30 June 2020.

• Control exists when Portland District Health has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an organisation so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account. The consolidated financial statements include the audited
financial statements of the controlled entities listed in Note 8.7 Controlled Entities.

• The parent entity is not shown separately in the notes.

Where control of an entity is obtained during the financial period, its results are included in the Comprehensive 
Operating Statement from the date on which control commenced. Where control ceases during a financial period, 
the entity’s results are included for that part of the period in which control existed. Where dissimilar accounting 
policies are adopted by entities and their effect is considered material, adjustments are made to ensure consistent 
policies are adopted in these financial statements. 

IINNTTEERRSSEEGGMMEENNTT  TTRRAANNSSAACCTTIIOONNSS  
Transactions between segments within Portland District Health have been eliminated to reflect the extent of 
Portland District Health’s operations as a group. 

FF.. EEQQUUIITTYY

CCOONNTTRRIIBBUUTTEEDD  CCAAPPIITTAALL  

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is, contributed 
capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and 
expenses of the Portland District Health.  

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions 
by owners. Transfers of net liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to 
owners. 

Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions or that have been designated as 
contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital. 

SSPPEECCIIFFIICC  RREESSTTRRIICCTTEEDD  PPUURRPPOOSSEE  SSUURRPPLLUUSS  

The Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus is established where Portland District Health has possession or title to 
the funds but has no discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or condition underlying the funds received. 

GG.. CCOOMMPPAARRAATTIIVVEESS

Where applicable, the comparative figures have been restated to align with the presentation in the current 
year. Figures have been restated in Notes 2.1, 3.1 and 3.2 
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NOTE 2:  FUNDING DELIVER OF OUR SERVICES 

Portland District Health’s overall objective is the health and wellbeing of the people in our community, as well 
as to improve the quality of life to Victorians. 

Portland District Health is predominantly funded by accrual based grant funding for the provision of outputs. 
To enable the hospital to fulfil its objective it received income based on parliamentary appropriations.  

Portland District Health also receives income from the supply of services. 

Structure 

2.1 Income from Transactions 

NNoottee  22..11::    IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
TToottaall  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
TToottaall  

22002200  22001199  
$$''000000  $$''000000  

Government Grant (State) – Operating 37,490 34,444 
Government Grant (Commonwealth) – Operating 3,872 3,534 
Government Grant (State) – Capital 557 1,184 
Other Capital purpose income (including capital donations) 34 873 
Patient & Resident Fees 6,882 6,965 
Commercial Activities¹ 2,527 2,650 
Other Revenue from Operating Activities (including non-capital 
donation) 2,357 2,618 
TToottaall  IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess  5533,,771199  5522,,226688  

Rental Income 387  
Other Interest 27 49 
TToottaall  IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  NNoonn--OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess  441155  4499  

TToottaall  IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  5544,,113344  5522,,331188  

¹ Commercial activities represent business activities which health service enter into to support their operations 

Footnote: Government Grant (State) - Operating includes funding of $2.16m which was spent due to the impacts of COVID-
19 
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IImmppaacctt  ooff  CCOOVVIIDD  1199  oonn  rreevveennuuee  aanndd  iinnccoommee  
As indicated at Note 1, Portland District Health's 
response to the pandemic included the deferral of 
elective surgeries and reduced activity. This resulted in 
Portland District Health incurring lost revenue as well as 
direct and indirect COVID-19 costs. The Department of 
Health and Human Services provided funding which was 
spent due to COVID-19 impacts on Portland District 
Health. Portland District Health also received essential 
personal protective equipment free of charge under the 
state supply arrangement. 

RReevveennuuee  RReeccooggnniittiioonn  
Income is recognised in accordance with either: 
a) contribution by owners, in accordance with AASB
1004;
b) income for not-for-profit entities, in accordance with
AASB 1058;
c) revenue or a contract liability arising from a contract
with a customer, in accordance with AASB 15;
d) a lease liability in accordance with AASB 16;
e) financial instrument, in accordance with AASB 9; or
f) a provision, in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  GGrraannttss  aanndd  OOtthheerr  TTrraannssffeerrss  ooff  IInnccoommee  ((ootthheerr  
tthhaann  ccoonnttrriibbuuttiioonnss  bbyy  oowwnneerrss))  
Income from grants that are enforceable and with 
sufficiently specific performance obligations are 
accounted for under AASB 15 as revenue from contracts 
with customers, with revenue recognised as these 
performance obligations are met. 

Income from grants without any sufficiently specific 
performance obligations, or that are not enforceable, is 
recognised when Portland District Health has an 
unconditional right to receive the cash which usually 
coincides with receipt of cash. On initial recognition of 
the asset, the Health Service recognises any related 
contributions by owners, increases in liabilities, 
decreases in assets, and revenue (‘related amounts’) in 
accordance with other Australian Accounting Standards. 
Related amounts may take the form of: 

a) contributions by owners, in accordance with AASB
1004;
b) revenue or a contract liability arising from a contract
with a customer, in accordance with AASB 15;
c) a lease liability in accordance with AASB 16;
d) a financial instrument, in accordance with AASB 9; or
e) a provision, in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

As a result of the transitional impacts of adopting AASB 
15 and AASB 1058, a portion of the grant revenue has 
been deferred. If the grant income is accounted for in  
accordance with AASB 15, the deferred grant revenue 
has been recognised in contract liabilities whereas grant 
revenue in relation to the construction of capital assets 

which the health service controls has been recognised in 
accordance with AASB 1058 and recognised as deferred 
grant revenue (refer note 5.2). 

If the grant revenue was accounted for under the 
previous accounting standard AASB 1004 in 2019-20, the 
total grant revenue received would have been 
recognised in full. 

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  OObblliiggaattiioonnss  
The types of government grants recognised under 
AASB15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
include: 
• Activity Based Funding (ABF) paid as WIES casemix
• Other one-off grants if funding conditions contain
enforceable and sufficiently specific performance
obligations.

For WIES funding, revenue is recognised when a patient 
is discharged and in accordance with the WIES count for 
each separation. The performance obligations have been 
selected as they align with the funding conditions as set 
out in the Policy and Funding Guidelines issued by the 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

For other grants with performance obligations Portland 
District Health exercises judgement over whether the 
performance obligations have been met, on a grant by 
grant basis. 

PPrreevviioouuss  aaccccoouunnttiinngg  ppoolliiccyy  ffoorr  3300  JJuunnee  22001199    
Grant income arises from transactions in which a party 
provides goods or assets (or extinguishes a liability) to 
Portland District Health without receiving approximately 
equal value in return. While grants may result in the 
provision of some goods or services to the transferring 
party, they do not provide a claim to receive benefits 
directly of approximately equal value (and are termed 
‘non-reciprocal’ transfers). Receipt and sacrifice of 
approximately equal value may occur, but only by 
coincidence.   
Some grants are reciprocal in nature (i.e. equal value is 
given back by the recipient of the grant to the provider). 
Portland District Health recognises income when it has 
satisfied its performance obligations under the terms of 
the grant.   
For non-reciprocal grants, Portland District Health 
recognises revenue when the grant is received.  
Grants can be received as general purpose grants, which 
refers to grants which are not subject to conditions 
regarding their use. Alternatively, they may be received 
as specific purpose grants, which are paid  for a particular 
purpose and/or have conditions attached regarding their 
use.    

PPaattiieenntt  aanndd  RReessiiddeenntt  FFeeeess  
The performance obligations related to patient fees for 
the provision of inpatient, district nursing and allied 
health. For WIES funding, revenue is recognised when a 
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patient is discharged and in accordance with the WIES 
count for each separation. Revenue for district nursing 
and allied health services is recognised when the service 
has been provided to the patient. The performance 
obligations have been selected as they align with the 
funding conditions as set out in the Policy and Funding 
Guidelines issued by the Department of Health and 
Human Services.   
 
RReevveennuuee  ffrroomm  CCoommmmeerrcciiaall  AAccttiivviittiieess  
Revenue from commercial activities includes items such 
as car park income, provision of meals to external users, 
medical supplies shop, cafés and recoveries for salaries 
and wages is recognised when the goods or services 
have been provided. 
Performance obligations related to commercial activities 
are complete provision of the activities listed above and 
are generally transactional. These performance 
obligations have been selected as they align with the 
terms and conditions per the contract with the provider 
of the commercial activities. 
 
22..11bb  FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  ooff  aasssseettss  aanndd  sseerrvviicceess  rreecceeiivveedd  ffrreeee  ooff  
cchhaarrggee  oorr  ffoorr  nnoommiinnaall  ccoonnssiiddeerraattiioonn  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22002200    

$$’’000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22001199  

$$’’000000  
Voluntary services 
PPE under state 
supply 
Cash donations and 
gifts 

344 
- 
 
 

6 

- 

TToottaall    335500  --  
  
In order to meet the State of Victoria’s health network 
supply needs during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
arrangements were put in place to centralise the 
purchasing of essential personal protective equipment 
and essential capital items such as ventilators. 
The general principles of the State Supply Arrangement 
were that Health Purchasing Victoria sourced, secured 
and agreed terms for the purchase of the products, 
funded by the department, while Monash Health and the 
department took delivery, and distributed the products 
to health services as resources provided free of charge. 
Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for 
nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value 
when the recipient obtains control over the    
resources, irrespective of whether restrictions or 
conditions are imposed over the use of the 
contributions.   
The exception to this would be when the resource is 
received from another government department (or 
agency) as a consequence of a restructuring of 
administrative arrangements, in which case such a 
transfer will be recognised at its carrying value in the 

transferring department or agency as a capital 
contribution transfer.   
  
22..11cc  OOtthheerr  iinnccoommee  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22002200    

$$’’000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22001199  

$$’’000000  
Capital 
interest 

28 61 

Rental income 387 211 
TToottaall    441155  227722  

 
IInntteerreesstt  RReevveennuuee  
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate 
basis that takes into account the effective yield of the 
financial asset which allocates interest over the relevant 
period. 
  
OOtthheerr  IInnccoommee  
Other income is recognised as revenue when received. 
Other income includes recoveries for salaries and wages 
and external services provided, and donations and 
bequests. If donations are for a specific purpose, they 
may be appropriated to a surplus, such as the specific 
restricted purpose surplus. 
  
RReennttaall  aanndd  lleeaassee  iinnccoommee  
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
 

All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed 
operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the  
net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, 
irrespective of the incentive's nature or form or the 
timing of payments. 
 

In the event that lease incentives are given to the lessee, 
the aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a 
reduction of rental income over the lease term, on a 
straight-line basis unless another systematic basis is 
more appropriate of the time pattern over which the 
economic benefit of the leased asset is diminished. 
 
22..11dd  OOppeerraattiinngg  lleeaassee  iinnccoommee  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22002200    

$$’’000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22001199  

$$’’000000  
Not longer than 
one year 

211 211 

Longer than 1 
year but not 
longer than 5 
years 

844 844 

TToottaall    11,,005555  11,,005555  
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NNOOTTEE  33::   THE COST OF DELIVERING SERVICES 
 
This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by Portland District Health in delivering services and 
outputs. In Note 2, the funds that enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the cost 
associated with provision of services are recorded. 
 
SSttrruuccttuurree  
  

33..11  EExxppeennsseess  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  
33..22  OOtthheerr  EEccoonnoommiicc  FFlloowwss  
33..33  AAnnaallyyssiiss  ooff  eexxppeennssee  aanndd  rreevveennuuee  bbyy  iinntteerrnnaallllyy  mmaannaaggeedd  aanndd  rreessttrriicctteedd  ssppeecciiffiicc  ppuurrppoossee  ffuunnddss  
33..44  EEmmppllooyyeeee  bbeenneeffiittss  iinn  tthhee  BBaallaannccee  SShheeeett  
33..55  SSuuppeerraannnnuuaattiioonn  
  
  

NNoottee  33..11::  EExxppeennsseess  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  
 

  
  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd    
TToottaall  
22002200  
$$''000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd    
TToottaall  
22001199  
$$''000000  

Salaries and Wages 28,747 26,690 
On-costs 6,170 5,930 
Agency Expenses 4,903 4,611 
Fee for Service Medical Officer Expenses 758 801 
Workcover Premium 232 215 

TToottaall  EEmmppllooyyeeee  EExxppeennsseess  4400,,881111  3388,,224477  
    

Drug Supplies 1,766 1,660 
Medical and Surgical Supplies (including Prostheses) 1,667 2,040 
Diagnostic and Radiology Supplies 1,207 874 
Other Supplies and Consumables 1,360 1,482 

TToottaall  SSuupppplliieess  aanndd  CCoonnssuummaabblleess  66,,000000  66,,005566  
        

Finance Costs 8 37 
TToottaall  FFiinnaannccee  CCoossttss  88  3377  
    

Fuel, Light, Power and Water 515 603 
Repairs and Maintenance 382 172 
Maintenance Contracts 603 625 
Medical Indemnity Insurance 383 355 
Other Expenses 4,087 4,150 

TToottaall  OOtthheerr  OOppeerraattiinngg  EExxppeennsseess    55,,996677  55,,990055  
       

Depreciation and Amortisation (refer note 4.2) 3,904 3,495 
TToottaall  DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn  aanndd  AAmmoorrttiissaattiioonn  33,,990044  33,,449955  

   
TToottaall  EExxppeennsseess  ffrroomm  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  5566,,669900  5533,,774400  
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Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and 
reported in the financial year to which they relate. 
  
IImmppaacctt  ooff  CCOOVVIIDD--1199  oonn  eexxppeennsseess  
As indicated at Note 1 Portland District Health's 
daily activities were impacted by the pandemic. 
This resulted in direct and indirect costs being 
incurred, a large proportion of which was increased 
employee costs. 
  
EEmmppllooyyeeee  eexxppeennsseess  
Employee expenses include: 
• Salaries and wages (including fringe benefits 

tax, leave entitlements, termination 
payments); 

• On-costs; 
• Agency expenses; 
• Fee for service medical officer expenses; 
• Work cover premiums. 

  
SSuupppplliieess  aanndd  ccoonnssuummaabblleess  
Supplies and consumables - Supplies and services 
costs which are recognised as an expense in the 
reporting period in which they are incurred. The 
carrying amounts of any inventories held for 
distribution are expensed when distributed. 
  
FFiinnaannccee  ccoossttss    
Finance costs include: 
• interest on bank overdrafts and short-term 

and long-term borrowings (Interest expense is 
recognised in the period in which it is 
incurred); 

• amortisation of discounts or premiums 
relating to borrowings; 

• amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in 
connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings; and 

• finance charges in respect of finance leases 
which are recognised in accordance with AASB 
117 Leases. 

 
OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  eexxppeennsseess 
Other operating expenses generally represent the 
day-to-day running costs incurred in normal 
operations and include such things as: 

• Fuel, light and power; 
• Repairs and maintenance; 
• Other administrative expenses 
• Expenditure for capital purposes (represents 

expenditure related to the purchase of assets 
that are below the capitalisation threshold of 
$1,000).  

The Department of Health and Human Services also 
makes certain payments on behalf of Portland 
District Health. These amounts have been brought 
to account as grants in determining the operating 
result for the year by recording them as revenue 
and also recording the related expense. 
  
NNoonn--ooppeerraattiinngg  eexxppeennsseess  
Other non-operating expenses generally represent 
expenditure for outside the normal operations such 
as depreciation and amortisation, and assets and 
services provided free of charge or for nominal 
consideration. 
 
OOppeerraattiinngg lleeaassee ppaayymmeennttss 
Operating lease payments up until 30 June 2019 
(including contingent rentals) were recognised on 
a straight line basis over the lease term, except 
where another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern of the benefits 
derived from the use of the leased asset. 
 

From 1 July 2019, the following lease payments 
are recognised on a straight-line basis: 
·         Short-term leases – leases with a term less 
than 12 months; and 
·         Low value leases – leases with the underlying 
asset’s fair value (when new, regardless of the age 
of the asset being leased) is no more than 
$10,000.  
 
Variable lease payments not included in the 
measurement of the lease liability (i.e. variable 
lease payments that do not depend on an index or 
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as 
at the commencement date). These payments are 
recognised in the period in which the event or 
condition that triggers those payments occur.
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NNoottee  33..22::    OOtthheerr  EEccoonnoommiicc  FFlloowwss  

  
Other economic flows are changes in the volume 
or value of an asset or liability that do not result 
from transactions. Other gains/(losses) from other 
economic flows include the gains or losses from: 

•      the revaluation of the present value of the 
long service leave liability due to changes in the 
bond interest rates; and 

•      reclassified amounts relating to available-for-
sale financial instruments from the reserves to net 
result due to a disposal or derecognition of the 
financial instrument. This does not include 
reclassification between equity accounts due to 
machinery of government changes or ‘other 
transfers’ of assets. 

NNeett  ggaaiinn//  ((lloossss))  oonn  nnoonn--ffiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss  
Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and 
liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and 
losses as follows: 

• Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial 
physical assets (Refer to Note 4.1 Property 
plant and equipment.) 
 

 
• Revaluation gains/(losses) of non-financial 

physical assets (investment property) 
• Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial 

assets 

NNeett  ggaaiinn//  ((lloossss))  oonn  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss  aatt  ffaaiirr  vvaalluuee  
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair 
value includes: 

• realised and unrealised gains and losses from 
revaluations of financial instruments at fair 
value; 

• impairment and reversal of impairment for 
financial instruments at amortised cost refer 
to Note 7.1 Investments and other financial 
assets; and 

• disposals of financial assets and derecognition 
of financial liabilities. 

OOtthheerr  ggaaiinnss//  ((lloosssseess))  ffrroomm  ootthheerr  eeccoonnoommiicc  fflloowwss  
Other gains/ (losses) include: 

• the revaluation of the present value of the 
long service leave liability due to changes in 
the bond rate movements, inflation rate 

 

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22002200  
$$''000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd    
22001199  
$$''000000  

     
Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-financial assets       
Revaluation of Investment property (520) 20 
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment 18 (4) 
TToottaall  nneett  ggaaiinn//((lloossss))  oonn  nnoonn--ffiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss  ((550022))  1166  
 
Share of other economic flows from Joint Operations   
Share of net profits/(losses) of associates, excluding dividends 1 3 
TToottaall  SShhaarree  ooff  ootthheerr  eeccoonnoommiicc  fflloowwss  ffrroomm  JJooiinntt  OOppeerraattiioonnss  11  33  
 
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows   
Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability (9) (174) 
TToottaall  ootthheerr  ggaaiinnss//((lloosssseess))  ffrroomm  ootthheerr  eeccoonnoommiicc  fflloowwss  ((99))  ((117744))  
 
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value 
Allowance for impairment loss of contractual receivables 
TToottaall  ootthheerr  ggaaiinnss//((lloosssseess))  oonn  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss  aatt  ffaaiirr  vvaalluuee  
 

  
(61) (20) 
((6611))  ((2200))  

  
TToottaall  ootthheerr  ggaaiinnss//((lloosssseess))  ffrroomm  eeccoonnoommiicc  fflloowwss  ((557711))  ((117755))  
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movements and the impact of changes in 
probability factors; and 

• transfer of amounts from the reserves to 
accumulated surplus or net result due to 
disposal or derecognition or reclassification.

 
 

NNoottee  33..33::    AAnnaallyyssiiss  ooff  eexxppeennssee  aanndd  rreevveennuuee  bbyy  iinntteerrnnaallllyy  mmaannaaggeedd  aanndd  rreessttrriicctteedd  
ssppeecciiffiicc  ppuurrppoossee  ffuunnddss  

 

  EExxppeennssee  RReevveennuuee  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
  22002200  22001199  22002200  22001199  

 CCoommmmeerrcciiaall  AAccttiivviittiieess $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

                  

Active Health Portland 32 29 53 49 

Diagnostic Imaging 2,369 2,478 2,144 2,187 

Property Rent - - 287 338 

Meals on Wheels 34 27 77 75 
TTOOTTAALL  22,,443355  22,,553344  22,,556611  22,,665500  
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NNoottee  33..44::    EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  iinn  tthhee  BBaallaannccee  SShheeeett  
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  

 22002200  22001199  

 $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCuurrrreenntt  PPrroovviissiioonnss     
Employee Benefits (i)    
Annual leave    

- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 2,373 1,978 
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 93 84            

Long service leave    
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 288 198 
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 2,625 2,549 

Accrued Days Off    
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii) 85 78 

Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs    
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii) 585 499 
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii) 299 281 

TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  PPrroovviissiioonnss  66,,334488  55,,666688    
   

NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  PPrroovviissiioonnss     
Employee Benefits (i) 1,629 1,470 
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs 160 143 
TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  PPrroovviissiioonnss  11,,778899  11,,661133  
  

      

TToottaall  PPrroovviissiioonnss  88,,113377  77,,228811  
((aa))  EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  aanndd  RReellaatteedd  OOnn--CCoossttss        
CCuurrrreenntt  EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  aanndd  rreellaatteedd  oonn--ccoossttss        
Unconditional LSL Entitlement 2,911 2,747 
Annual Leave Entitlements 2,369 1,966 
Accrued Days Off 85 78 
SWARH employment benefits 98 96 
NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  aanndd  rreellaatteedd  oonn--ccoossttss        
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (ii) 1,610 1,456 
SWARH employment benefits 19 14 
TToottaall  EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  77,,009922  66,,335588  
OOnn--CCoossttss        
Current On-Costs 885 780 
Non-Current On-Costs 160 143 
TToottaall  OOnn--CCoossttss  11,,004455  992233  
TToottaall  EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  aanndd  RReellaatteedd  OOnn--CCoossttss  88,,113377  77,,228811  
((bb))  MMoovveemmeenntt  iinn  OOnnccoosstt  PPrroovviissiioonnss      

MMoovveemmeenntt  iinn  LLoonngg  SSeerrvviiccee  LLeeaavvee::      
BBaallaannccee  aatt  ssttaarrtt  ooff  yyeeaarr  992233  777744  
Provision made during the year     

- Revaluations 2 37 
- Expense recognising Employee Service 181 154 

Settlement made during the year (61) (42) 
BBaallaannccee  aatt  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr 11,,004455                                        992233 
NNootteess::  

(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave and long service 
leave accrued by employees, not including on-costs 

(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts 
(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values 
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EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiitt  RReeccooggnniittiioonn  
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave for services rendered to the reporting date as an expense during the period the services are 
delivered. 
 

PPrroovviissiioonnss 
Provisions are recognised when the Portland 
District Health has a present obligation, the future 
sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the 
amount of the provision can be measured reliably. 
The amount recognised as a liability is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into 
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation.  
 

AAnnnnuuaall  LLeeaavvee  aanndd  AAccccrruueedd  DDaayyss  OOffff  
Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are 
recognised in the provision for employee benefits 
as ‘current liabilities’, because Portland District 
Health does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlements of these liabilities. 
 

Depending on the expectation of the timing of 
settlement, liabilities for salaries and wages and 
annual leave are measured at: 

• Nominal value – if Portland District Health 
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; 
or 

• Present value – if Portland District Health 
does not expect to settle within 12 months. 
  

LLoonngg  SSeerrvviiccee  LLeeaavvee 
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised 
in the provision for employee benefits. 
  

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements as a current liability even 
where Portland District Health does not expect to 

settle the liability within 12 months because it will 
not have the unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the entitlement should an employee 
take leave within 12 months.  An unconditional 
right arises after a qualifying period. 
 

The components of this current LSL liability are 
measured at: 

• Nominal value – if Portland District Health 
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; 
and 

• Present value – if Portland District Health 
does not expect to settle within 12 months. 

 

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current 
liability. Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the 
present value of non-current LSL liability is 
recognised as a transaction, except to the extent 
that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond 
interest rates for which it is then recognised as 
other economic flow. 
 

TTeerrmmiinnaattiioonn  BBeenneeffiittss  
Termination benefits are payable when 
employment is terminated before the normal 
retirement date or when an employee decides to 
accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the 
termination of employment. 
  

EEmmppllooyyeeee  bbeenneeffiitt  oonn--ccoossttss  
Provision for on-costs such as workers 
compensation and superannuation are recognised 
separately from provisions for employee benefits. 
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NNoottee  33..55..    SSuuppeerraannnnuuaattiioonn  
 
The name, details and amounts expense in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and 
contributions made by the Health Services are as follows: 
  

  
PPaaiidd  CCoonnttrriibbuuttiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  YYeeaarr  CCoonnttrriibbuuttiioonn  OOuuttssttaannddiinngg  aatt  

YYeeaarr  EEnndd  
 
 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  
DDeeffiinneedd  bbeenneeffiitt  ppllaannss  ((ii))::          
- First State Super 22 23 2 2 

       
DDeeffiinneedd  ccoonnttrriibbuuttiioonn  ppllaannss::        
- First State Super 1,680 1,626 187 119 
- Hesta 834 716 93 60 
- Other 255 231 23 10 
          
TToottaall  22,,779911  22,,559966  330055  119911  
     
(i) The bases for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit 
superannuation plans. 

  
Employees of Portland District Health are entitled 
to receive superannuation benefits and it 
contributes to both defined benefit and defined 
contribution plans. The defined benefit plan 
provides benefits based on years of service and 
final average salary. 
 
DDeeffiinneedd  ccoonnttrriibbuuttiioonn  ssuuppeerraannnnuuaattiioonn  ppllaannss  
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. 
accumulation) superannuation plans, the 
associated expense is simply the employer 
contributions that are paid or payable in respect of 
employees who are members of these plans during 
the reporting period. Contributions to defined 
contribution superannuation plans are expenses 
when incurred. 
  
DDeeffiinneedd  bbeenneeffiitt  ssuuppeerraannnnuuaattiioonn  ppllaannss  
The amount charged to the Comprehensive 
Operating Statement in respect of defined benefit 
superannuation plans represents the contributions 
made by Portland District Health to the 
superannuation plans in respect of the services of 
current Portland District Health staff during the 
reporting period. Superannuation contributions are 
made to the plans based on the relevant rules of 
each plan and are based upon actuarial advice. 

 
Portland District Health does not recognise any 
unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the 
plans because the entity has no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay future benefits 
relating to its employees; its only obligation is to 
pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. 
The Department of Treasury & Finance discloses 
the State’s defined benefits liabilities in its 
disclosure for administered items. 
 
However superannuation contributions paid or 
payable for the reporting period are included as 
part of employee benefits in the comprehensive 
operating statement of Portland District Health.  
 
The name, details and amounts that have been 
expensed in relation to the major employee 
superannuation funds and contributions made by 
Portland District Health are disclosed above. 
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NNOOTTEE  44::   KEY ASSETS TO SUPPORT SERVICE DELIVERY 
 
Portland District Health controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives 
and conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to the hospital to be 
utilised for delivery of those outputs. 
 
SSttrruuccttuurree  
  
44..11  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  ppllaanntt  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  
44..22  DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn  aanndd  aammoorrttiissaattiioonn  
44..33  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  pprrooppeerrttiieess  
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NNoottee  44..11::    PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  &&  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  
  

((aa))  GGrroossss  ccaarrrryyiinngg  aammoouunntt  aanndd  aaccccuummuullaatteedd  ddeepprreecciiaattiioonn  
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  

LLaanndd     
Land Improvements at Fair Value 732 495 
Land at Fair Value  2,500 2,500 
TToottaall  LLaanndd  33,,223322  22,,999955  
     

BBuuiillddiinnggss     
Buildings Under Construction at Cost 95 361 
Buildings at Fair Value 56,836 56,815 

Less Acc'd Depreciation (2,955) - 
TToottaall  BBuuiillddiinnggss  5533,,997766  5577,,117766  
     

PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt     
Plant and Equipment at Fair Value 6,392 5,760 

Less Acc'd Depreciation (4,970) (4,815) 
TToottaall  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  11,,442222  994455  
     

MMeeddiiccaall  EEqquuiippmmeenntt     
Medical Equipment at Fair Value 7,995 7,880 

Less Acc'd Depreciation (5,534) (5,444) 
TToottaall  MMeeddiiccaall  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  22,,446611  22,,443344  

    

CCoommppuutteerrss  aanndd  CCoommmmuunniiccaattiioonn     
Computers and Communication at Fair Value 412 385 

Less Acc'd Depreciation (323) (273) 
TToottaall  CCoommppuutteerrss  aanndd  CCoommmmuunniiccaattiioonn  8899  111122  
     

FFuurrnniittuurree  aanndd  FFiittttiinnggss     
Furniture and Fittings at Fair Value 653 555 

Less Acc'd Depreciation (424) (389) 
TToottaall  FFuurrnniittuurree  aanndd  FFiittttiinnggss  222299  116666  
        

MMoottoorr  VVeehhiicclleess     
Motor Vehicles at Fair Value 322 322 

Less Acc'd Depreciation (272) (247) 
TToottaall  MMoottoorr  VVeehhiicclleess  5500  7755  
        

LLeeaasseedd  AAsssseettss       

Motor Vehicles 318 251 
Less Acc'd Amortisation (84) (42) 
TToottaall  LLeeaasseedd  AAsssseettss  223344  220099  
      

TTOOTTAALL  6611,,669933  6644,,111122  
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NNoottee  44..11::    PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  &&  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))  
  

((bb))  RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonnss  ooff  tthhee  ccaarrrryyiinngg  aammoouunnttss  ooff  eeaacchh  ccllaassss  ooff  aasssseett  
    

 LLaanndd  BBuuiillddiinnggss  
PPllaanntt  &&  

EEqquuiipp  
MMeeddiiccaall  

EEqquuiipp  
CCoommppuutteerrss//

CCoommmm  
FFuurrnniittuurree
//FFiittttiinnggss  

MMoottoorr  
VVeehhiicclleess  

RRiigghhtt  ooff  
UUssee  ––  

MMoottoorr  
VVeehhiicclleess  

TToottaall  
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  

 $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  
  

$$''000000  $$''000000  

BBaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJuullyy  22001188  22,,884422    5522,,773355                  669944          22,,117777                      330033                115522                119988    5599,,110022  

Additions 
          

-  349 401 806 15 45 177 
 

    1,793 

Disposals 
           

-  
             

-  
               

-  
               

-  - 
             

-  
       

(22) 
 

   (22) 
Revaluation 
Increments/(decrements) 153 6,582 - 

               
-  

                  
-  - - 

 
6,735 

Net Transfers between 
Classes       (209) 209 - 

Depreciation (Note 4.2) -  (2,490) (150) 
        

(549) 
           

(206) 
        

(31) 
       

(69)  (3,495) 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJuullyy  22001199  22,,999955  5577,,117766  994455  22,,443344  111122  116666  7755  220099  6644,,111122  

Additions -          94        633 554 27 98 - 67 1,473 
Net Transfers between 
Classes 237 (340) 103 - - - - - - 

Depreciation (Note 4.2)  (2,954)  (259)         
         

(527) (50) (35) (25) (42) (3,892) 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  33,,223322        5533,,997766  11,,442222  22,,446611  8899  222299  5500  223344  6611,,669933  

 
LLaanndd  aanndd  bbuuiillddiinnggss  ccaarrrriieedd  aatt  vvaalluuaattiioonn   

A full revaluation of Portland District Health's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General of Victoria 
(VGV) in May 2019 in accordance with the requirements of Financial Reporting Direction (FRD) 103H Non-Financial 
Physical Assets. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to 
the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length 
transaction. The effective date of the valuation for both land and buildings was 30 June 2019. 
 

In compliance with FRD 103H, in the year ended 30 June 2020, management conducted an annual assessment of 
the fair value of land and buildings. To facilitate this, management obtained from the Department of Treasury and 
Finance the VGV indices for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. 
 

The VGV indices, which are based on data to March 2020, indicate an average increase of 6% across all land parcels 
and a 3% increase in buildings. 
 

Management regards the VGV indices to be a reliable and relevant data set to form the basis of their estimates. 
Whilst these indices are applicable at 30 June 2020, the fair value of land and buildings will continue to be subjected 
to the impacts of COVID-19 in future accounting periods.  
 

As the accumulative movement was less than 10% for land and buildings no managerial revaluation was required.                
The land and building balances are considered to be sensitive to market conditions. To trigger a managerial 
revaluation a decrease in the land indice of 10% and a decrease in the building indice of 10% would be required. 
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((cc))  FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  hhiieerraarrcchhyy  ffoorr  aasssseettss  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd    
CCaarrrryyiinngg  
AAmmoouunntt    

FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  aatt  eenndd  ooff  
rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd  uussiinngg::  

    
      

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  LLeevveell  11  ((ii))  LLeevveell  22  ((ii))  LLeevveell  33  ((ii))      

LLaanndd  aatt  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee        
Land Improvements 732   732   
Specialised land             2,500  -  -          2,500    
Total of land at fair value                       33,,223322    --    --                  33,,223322        
BBuuiillddiinnggss  aatt  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee       
Specialised buildings          53,881  - -        53,881   
Total of building at fair value                   5533,,888811    --  --    5533,,888811      
PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  aatt  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee       
Plant Equipment and Vehicles at Fair Value   
 - Plant and equipment 1,422  -  -         1,422    
- Medical equipment             2,461   -  -         2,461    
- Computers and Communication                89  -  - 89   
- Furniture and Fittings                 229  -  - 229   
- Motor Vehicles 50  -  50             -    
 Total of plant and equipment at fair value 44,,225511    --  5500  44,,220011      
                      6611,,336644      --  5500            6611,,331144        

 

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd    
CCaarrrryyiinngg  
AAmmoouunntt    

FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  aatt  eenndd  ooff  
rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd  uussiinngg::    

BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22001199  LLeevveell  11  ((ii))  LLeevveell  22  ((ii))  LLeevveell  33  ((ii))  
LLaanndd  aatt  ffaaiirr  vvaalluuee          
Land Improvements 495     495 
Specialised land 2,500                -                 -  2,500 
Total of land at fair value 22,,999955                                --                                  --    22,,999955  
BBuuiillddiinnggss  aatt  ffaaiirr  vvaalluuee          

Specialised buildings          56,815               -                -  56,815 
Total of building at fair value 5566,,881155                                --                                  --    5566,,881155  
PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  aatt  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee   
Plant Equipment and Vehicles at Fair Value 
 - Plant and equipment                945                -                 -  945 
- Medical equipment 2,434                -                 -  2,434 
- Computers and Communication 112                -                 -  112 
- Furniture and Fittings 166                -                 -  166 
- Motor Vehicles 284                -  284  
 Total of building at fair value 33,,994411                                --  228844  33,,665577  
    6633,,775522                                --    228844  6633,,446688  

Note: 
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy 

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.  

Portland District Health | Financial Statements 2019-20 62



PPOORRTTLLAANNDD  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  HHEEAALLTTHH    
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ||FFOORR  YYEEAARR  EENNDDEEDD  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  
  

((dd))  RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  LLeevveell  33  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee  
  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
LLaanndd  BBuuiillddiinnggss  PPllaanntt  &&  

EEqquuiipp..  
MMeeddiiccaall  

EEqquuiipp  
CCoommppuutteerrss  

&&  CCoommmm..  
FFuurrnniittuurree  
&&  FFiittttiinnggss  

TToottaall  
3300  JJuunnee  22002200  

                              
OOppeenniinngg  BBaallaannccee  2,995    56,815 945 2,434 112 166 63,468 

Additions/(Disposals) 237            21 736 554 27 98 1,672 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) - -  -            -                 -                 
Gains or losses recognised in net result        

- Depreciation - (2,955) (259) (527) (50) (35) (3,826) 
CClloossiinngg  BBaallaannccee  33,,223322  5533,,888811  11,,442222  22,,446611  8899  222299  6611,,331144  

 
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  

LLaanndd  BBuuiillddiinnggss  
PPllaanntt  &&  
EEqquuiipp..  

MMeeddiiccaall  
EEqquuiipp  

CCoommppuutteerrss  
&&  CCoommmm..  

FFuurrnniittuurree  
&&  FFiittttiinnggss  

TToottaall  
3300  JJuunnee  22001199  

                                
OOppeenniinngg  BBaallaannccee     2,842  52,735 694 2,177             303 152 58,904 

Additions/(Disposals) - - 401 806 15 45 1,267 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) 153 6,582            -             -                  -                -  6,735  
Gains or losses recognised in net result        
- Depreciation             -     (2,502) (150) (549) (206) (31) (3,438) 
CClloossiinngg  BBaallaannccee  22,,999955  5566,,881155  994455  22,,443344  111122  116666  6633,,446688  

 
((ee))  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  ((FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  ddeetteerrmmiinnaattiioonn))  

          

 
AAsssseett  ccllaassss  EExxaammpplleess  ooff  ttyyppeess  ooff  aasssseettss  

EExxppeecctteedd  ffaaiirr  
vvaalluuee  lleevveell  

VVaalluuaattiioonn    
aapppprrooaacchh  

SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  
iinnppuuttss    

((LLeevveell  33  oonnllyy))((cc))    

 Specialised Land (Crown / 
Freehold) 

• Land subject to 
restriction as to use 
and/or sale 

Level 3 Market approach 

Community 
Service 
Obligations 
Adjustments 
(20%) 

 

• Land in areas where 
there is not an active 
market 

 
Specialised buildings 

Specialised buildings 
with limited alternative 
uses and/or substantial 
customisation e.g. prisons, 
hospitals and schools 

Level 3 
Depreciated 

Replacement Cost 
approach 

Cost per  square 
metre 

 
Useful life 

 
Vehicles 

If there is an active resale 
market available 

Level 2 Market Approach 
n/a 

 
 

 Plant and equipment at fair 
value 

Specialised items with 
limited alternative 
uses and/or substantial 
customisation 

Level 3 
Depreciated 

Replacement cost 
approach 

Cost per unit 

 
Useful life 

 
Medical Equipment at fair value Any type Level 3 

Depreciated 
replacement cost 

approach 

Cost per unit 

 
Useful life 

 
A community service obligation of 20% was applied to the health services specialised land classified in 
accordance with the fair value hierarchy.  
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  ((ff))  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  SSuurrpplluuss  
  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22002200    

  
$$’’000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22001199  

  
$$’’000000  

PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt  RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  SSuurrpplluuss    
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 50,729 43,993 
Revaluation Increment   

- Land  153 
- Buildings  6,582 

BBaallaannccee  aatt  tthhee  eenndd  ooff  tthhee  rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd  5500,,772299  5500,,772299  
   
* Represented by:   

- Land 2,405 2,405 
- Buildings 48,324 48,324 

 5500,,772299  5500,,772299  
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IInniittiiaall  RReeccooggnniittiioonn  
Items of property, plant and equipment are 
measured initially at cost and subsequently 
revalued at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is 
acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair 
value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred 
as part of a merger/machinery of government are 
transferred at their carrying amounts. 
 

The cost of constructed non-financial physical 
assets includes the cost of all materials used in 
construction, direct labour on the project and an 
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 
overheads.   
  

Theoretical opportunities that may be available in 
relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account 
until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will 
no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise 
disclosed, the current use of these non-financial 
physical assets will be their highest and best uses. 
  

Land and Buildings are recognised initially at cost 
and subsequently measured at fair value less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment.  
 
RRiigghhtt  ooff  uussee  aasssseettss  
Portland District Health recognises a right-of-use 
asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is 
initially measured at cost which comprises the 
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for: 
• any lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date; plus   
• any initial direct costs incurred; and 
• an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove 

the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentive received.  

Portland District Health depreciates the right-of-
use assets on a straight line basis from the lease 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of 
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful life of the 
right-of-use assets are determined on the same 
basis as property, plant and equipment, other than 
where the lease term is lower than the otherwise 
assigned useful life.  The right-of-use assets are also 
subject to revaluation as required by FRD 103I 
[pending] however as at 30 June 2020 right-of-use 
assets have not been revalued.  In addition, the 

right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. As part of the 
buildings valuation, building values were separated 
into components and each component assessed for 
its useful life which is represented above.  
  
RReevvaalluuaattiioonnss  ooff  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  PPhhyyssiiccaall  AAsssseettss  
Non-current physical assets are measured at fair 
value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 
103H Non-Current Physical Assets.  This revaluation 
process normally occurs every five years, based 
upon the asset's Government Purpose 
Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair 
value assessments indicate material changes in 
values. Independent valuers are used to conduct 
these scheduled revaluations and any interim 
revaluations are determined in accordance with the 
requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments 
or decrements arise from differences between an 
asset’s carrying value and fair value. 
 

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘Other 
Comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly 
to the asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the 
extent that an increment reverses a revaluation 
decrement in respect of that same class of asset 
previously recognised as an expense in net result, 
the increment is recognised as income in the net 
result. 
 

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘Other 
Comprehensive Income’ to the extent that a credit 
balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in 
respect of the same class of property, plant and 
equipment. 
 

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases 
relating to individual assets within an asset class are 
offset against one another within that class but are 
not offset in respect of assets in different classes.  
 

Revaluation surplus is not transferred to 
accumulated funds on de-recognition of the 
relevant asset, except where an asset is transferred 
via contributed capital. 
 

FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. 
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Portland 
District Health has determined classes of assets on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of 
the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 
 

In addition, Portland District Health determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in 
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. 
 

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Portland 
District Health’s independent valuation agency. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
 
VVaalluuaattiioonn  hhiieerraarrcchhyy  
In determining fair values a number of inputs are 
used. To increase consistency and comparability in 
the financial statements, these inputs are 
categorised into three levels, also known as the fair 
value hierarchy. The levels are as follows:  
• Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market 

prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities;  

• Level 2 – valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable; and  

• Level 3 – valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 

  
  
CCoonnssiiddeerraattiioonn  ooff  hhiigghheesstt  aanndd  bbeesstt  uussee  ((HHBBUU))  ffoorr  nnoonn--
ffiinnaanncciiaall  pphhyyssiiccaall  aasssseettss  
Judgements about highest and best use (HBU) must 
take into account the characteristics of the assets 
concerned, including restrictions on the use and 
disposal of assets arising from the asset’s physical 
nature and any applicable legislative/contractual 
arrangements. 
 

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13.29, Health 
Services can assume the current use of a non-
financial physical asset is its HBU unless market or 
other factors suggest that a different use by market 
participants would maximise the value of the asset. 
 
IIddeennttiiffyyiinngg  uunnoobbsseerrvvaabbllee  iinnppuuttss  ((lleevveell  33))  ffaaiirr  vvaalluuee  
mmeeaassuurreemmeennttss  

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation 
inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require 
significant judgement and assumptions in deriving 
fair value for both financial and non-financial 
assets. 
 

Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair 
value to the extent that relevant observable inputs 
are not available, thereby allowing for situations in 
which there is little, if any, market activity for the 
asset or liability at the measurement date. 
However, the fair value measurement objective 
remains the same, i.e., an exit price at the 
measurement date from the perspective of a 
market participant that holds the asset or owes the 
liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall 
reflect the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
including assumptions about risk. 
  
NNoonn--SSppeecciiaalliisseedd  LLaanndd  aanndd  NNoonn--SSppeecciiaalliisseedd  BBuuiillddiinnggss..  
Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings 
are valued using the market approach. Under this 
valuation method, the assets are compared to 
recent comparable sales or sales of comparable 
assets which are considered to have nominal or no 
added improvement value. 
 

For non-specialised land and non-specialised 
buildings, an independent valuation was performed 
by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair 
value using the market approach. Valuation of the 
assets was determined by analysing comparable 
sales and allowing for share, size, topography, 
location and other relevant factors specific to the 
asset being valued. An appropriate rate per square 
metre has been applied to the subject asset. The 
effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019. 
  
SSppeecciiaalliisseedd  LLaanndd  aanndd  SSppeecciiaalliisseedd  BBuuiillddiinnggss  
Specialised land includes Crown Land which is 
measured at fair value with regard to the property’s 
highest and best use after due consideration is 
made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed 
on the asset, public announcements or 
commitments made in relation to the intended use 
of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be 
available in relation to the assets are not taken into 
account until it is virtually certain that any 
restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless 
otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-
financial physical assets will be their highest and 
best use. 
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During the reporting period, Portland District 
Health held Crown Land. The nature of this asset 
means that there are certain limitations and 
restrictions imposed on its use and/or disposal that 
may impact their fair value. 
 

The market approach is also used for specialised 
land and specialised buildings although it is 
adjusted for the community service obligation 
(CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets 
being valued. Specialised assets contain significant, 
unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets 
are classified as Level 3 under the market based 
direct comparison approach. 
 

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s 
assessment of the impact of restrictions associated 
with an asset to the extent that is also equally 
applicable to market participants. This approach is 
in light of the highest and best use consideration 
required for fair value measurement, and takes into 
account the use of the asset that is physically 
possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. 
As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant 
unobservable inputs, specialised land would be 
classified as Level 3 assets.  
 

For Portland District Health, the depreciated 
replacement cost method is used for the majority 
of specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated 
depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are 
considered as significant and unobservable inputs 
in nature, specialised buildings are classified as 
Level 3 for fair value measurements. 
 

An independent valuation of Portland District 
Health’s specialised land and specialised buildings 

was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria. The 
valuation was performed using the market 
approach adjusted for CSO. The effective date of 
the valuation is 30 June 2019. 
  
VVeehhiicclleess  
Portland District Health acquires new vehicles and 
at times disposes of them before completion of 
their economic life. The process of acquisition, use 
and disposal in the market is managed by the 
Portland District Health who set relevant 
depreciation rates during use to reflect the 
consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair 
value of vehicles does not differ materially from the 
carrying amount (depreciated cost). 
  
PPllaanntt  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  
Plant and equipment is held at carrying amount 
(depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is 
specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other 
than as part of a going concern, the depreciated 
replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. 
Unless there is market evidence that current 
replacement costs are significantly different from 
the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely 
that depreciated replacement cost will be 
materially different from the existing carrying 
amount. 
 

There were no changes in valuation techniques 
throughout the period to 30 June 2020. 
 

For all assets measured at fair value, the current 
use is considered the highest and best use.  
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NNoottee  44..22::    DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn  aanndd  aammoorrttiissaattiioonn  
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  
DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn    
Buildings  2,955 2,490 
Plant & Equipment  259 150 
Medical Equipment 527 549 
Computers and Communication 50 206 
Motor Vehicles 67 69 
Furniture and Fittings 35 31 
Leased Assets  12 - 
TToottaall  DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn  33,,990044  33,,449955  

 
DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn  
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets that have finite 
useful lives are depreciated (i.e. excludes land assets held for sale, and investment properties).  
 

Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line basis at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any 
estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. The following table indicates the expected useful lives of 
non-current assets on which the depreciation charges are based. 
 

 22002200  22001199  
Buildings   
 Structure Shell Building Fabric 10 – 43 years 5 – 50 years 
 Site Engineering Services and Central Plant 25 – 33 years 20 – 30 years 
Central Plant    
 Fit Out 13 – 18 years 20 – 30 years 
 Trunk Reticulated Building Systems 15 – 23 years 30 – 40 years 
Plant & Equipment 3 – 20 years 3 – 20 years 
Medical Equipment 5 – 10 years 5 – 10 years 
Furniture and Fitting 5 – 10 years 5 – 10 years 
Computers and Communication 3 – 5 years 3 – 5 years 
Motor Vehicles 3 – 5 years 3 – 5 years 

 
As part of the buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component 
assessed for its useful life which is represented above. 
 

The change in remaining useful life for Buildings and central plant, was a result of revaluation of land and 
buildings completed in 2019. The Valuer is required to reassess the estimated useful life based on the current 
building conditions. The change in remaining useful life has resulted in an increase in depreciation expense of 
$2.95m for buildings.  
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NNoottee  44..33::    IInnvveessttmmeenntt  PPrrooppeerrttiieess  
((aa))  MMoovveemmeennttss  iinn  ccaarrrryyiinngg  vvaalluuee  ffoorr  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  pprrooppeerrttiieess  aass  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22001199  

     CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
     22002200  22001199  
     $$''000000  $$''000000  

BBaallaannccee  aatt  BBeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff  PPeerriioodd 3,120 3,100 
Additions 40 - 
Net Gain/(loss) from Fair Value Adjustments (520) 20 
BBaallaannccee  aatt  EEnndd  ooff  PPeerriioodd  22,,664400  33,,112200  
  
((bb))  FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  hhiieerraarrcchhyy  ffoorr  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  pprrooppeerrttiieess        
 

        

 CCaarrrryyiinngg  
aammoouunntt  aass  
aatt  3300  JJuunnee  

22002200  

FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  aatt  eenndd  ooff  
rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd  uussiinngg::   

 LLeevveell  11  ((ii))  LLeevveell  22  ((ii))  LLeevveell  33  ((ii))  
Investment properties 2,640  2,640          -    

22,,664400    22,,664400                        --    
 
     

 CCaarrrryyiinngg  
aammoouunntt  aass  
aatt  3300  JJuunnee  

22001199  

FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  mmeeaassuurreemmeenntt  aatt  eenndd  ooff  
rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd  uussiinngg::   

 LLeevveell  11  ((ii))  LLeevveell  22  ((ii))  LLeevveell  33  ((ii))  
Investment properties 3,120             -  3,120          -    

33,,112200                                --    33,,112200                        --      
              

(i) classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy    
 

The fair value of Seaview House (2 Otway Court 
Portland) has been arrived at on the basis of an 
independent valuation by the Victorian Valuer-
General dated 30 June 2020. This is the sole 
investment property held in the reporting period. 
 

The valuation, which conforms to market valuation 
standards, was arrived at by reference to market 
evidence of transaction prices for similar 
properties. The value contained herein is the 
market value at reporting date. 
 

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  pprrooppeerrttiieess  
Investment properties represent properties held to 
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. 
Investment properties exclude properties held to 
meet service delivery objectives of the health 
services. 
 

Investment properties are initially recognised at 
cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial 

acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that 
future economic benefits in excess of the originally 
assessed performance of the asset will flow to the 
Health Service. 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, 
investment properties are revalued to fair value, 
determined annually by independent valuers. Fair 
values are determined based on a market 
comparable approach that reflects recent 
transaction prices for similar properties. 
Investment properties are neither depreciated nor 
tested for impairment. 
 

Rental revenue from leasing of investment 
properties is recognised in the comprehensive 
operating statement in the periods in which it is 
receivable on a straight line basis over the lease 
term.
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NNOOTTEE  55::  OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from Portland District Health’s operations 
SSttrruuccttuurree  
  

55..11  RReecceeiivvaabblleess  
55..22  PPaayyaabblleess  
55..33  OOtthheerr  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
  
  

NNoottee  55..11::    RReecceeiivvaabblleess  
  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
  22002200  22001199  
  $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCUURRRREENNTT       
CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall       

Trade Debtors  638 578 
Patient Fees  515 580 
Accrued Revenue - Other   55 46                   

Less Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables     
Trade Debtors  (31) (35) 
Patient Fees  (100) (35) 

  11,,007777  11,,113344  
SSttaattuuttoorryy       

GST Receivable  182 176 
    118822  117766  
TTOOTTAALL  CCUURRRREENNTT  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS    11,,225599  11,,331100  
NNOONN--CCUURRRREENNTT  
SSttaattuuttoorryy  

Long service leave – Department of Health and Human Services 

  

109 87 
     Long service leave – SWARH    33 --  

TTOOTTAALL  NNOONN--CCUURRRREENNTT  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS    114422  8877  

        

TTOOTTAALL  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS    11,,440011  11,,339977  
  

((aa))  MMoovveemmeenntt  iinn  tthhee  AAlllloowwaannccee  ffoorr  iimmppaaiirrmmeenntt  lloosssseess  ooff  ccoonnttrraaccttuuaall  rreecceeiivvaabblleess   
  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
  22002200  22001199  
  $$''000000  $$''000000  
Balance at beginning of year  70                50  
Increase/(decrease)  in allowance recognised in net result  61                20  
BBaallaannccee  aatt  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr    113311                                        7700    

 

RReecceeiivvaabblleess  RReeccooggnniittiioonn  
Receivables consist of: 
• Contractual receivables, which consists of debtors in 

relation to goods and services and accrued 
investment income. These receivables are classified 
as financial instruments and categorised as ‘financial 
assets at amortised costs’. They are initially 
recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 

transaction costs. Portland District Health holds the 
contractual receivables with the objective to collect 
the contractual cash flows and therefore 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment.  

• Statutory receivables, which predominantly includes 
amounts owing from the Victorian Government and 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits 
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recoverable.  Statutory receivables do not arise from 
contracts and are recognised and measured 
similarly to contractual receivables (except for 
impairment), but are not classified as financial 
instruments for disclosure purposes. Portland 
District Health applies AASB 9 for initial 
measurement of the statutory receivables and as a 
result statutory receivables are initially recognised 
at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction cost. 

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and 
are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of 
recognition.  
 

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) 
financial assets, which are not financial instruments, 
professional judgement is applied in assessing 

materiality using estimates, averages and other 
computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 
Impairment of Assets. 
 

Portland District Health is not exposed to any significant 
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any 
group of counterparties having similar characteristics. 
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers 
in various geographical areas. Based on historical 
information about customer default rates, management 
consider the credit quality of trade receivables that are 
not past due or impaired to be good. 

IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  lloosssseess  ooff  ccoonnttrraaccttuuaall  rreecceeiivvaabblleess  
Refer to Note 7.1 (c) Contractual receivables at 
amortised costs for Portland District Health’s 
contractual impairment losses. 

  

NNoottee  55..22::    PPaayyaabblleess  
 

   CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 NNootteess  22002200  22001199  
   $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCUURRRREENNTT    
CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall    

Trade Creditors (i)  1,872 2,156 
Accrued Salary & Wages  471 1,191 
Income in Advance 5.2 (a) 299 74 
Accrued Expenses  737 623 
Total Current Contractual   33,,337799  44,,004444  
SSttaattuuttoorryy  

 

Statutory Payable  38 24 
Department of Health and Human Services  - 149 
Total Current Statutory   3388  117733  

    
TTOOTTAALL  CCUURRRREENNTT      33,,441177                          44,,221177  

   
TTOOTTAALL  PPAAYYAABBLLEESS    33,,441177  44,,221177  
 (i) The average credit period is 30 days. No interest is charged on overdue payables. 

(ii) Terms and conditions of amounts payable to the Department of Health and Human Services 
vary according to the particular agreement with the Department. 

 
(1) Loans from Department of Health and Human Services 

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) provided Portland District Health with non-interest bearing 
loans in 2013 / 14 ($900k) and 2014 / 15 ($980k). The non-current portion of these borrowings have been discounted 
to present value in line with Department of Treasury and Finance Financial Directive FRD114-A. 
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PPaayyaabblleess  RReeccooggnniittiioonn  
Payables consist of: 
• contractual payables which comprise predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and 

services provided to the health service prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid. Contractual payables 
are classified as financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value, and then subsequently carried at 
amortised cost. 

• statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables. Statutory payables are 
recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not 
included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from contracts. 

MMaattuurriittyy  aannaallyyssiiss  ooff  ppaayyaabblleess  
Please refer to Note 7.1(b) for the maturity analysis of payables. 

NNoottee  55..22  ((aa))::  CCoonnttrraacctt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  
 

     CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
     22002200  22001199  
     $$''000000  $$''000000  

   
Payments received for performance obligations yet to be 
completed during the period Additions 299 - 
Total Current contract liabilities 299 - 
TToottaall  CCoonnttrraacctt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  229999  --  

 
 
NNoottee  55..33::    OOtthheerr  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCUURRRREENNTT   
Monies Held in Trust*    
   - Patient Monies Held in Trust* 32 19 
   - Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)* 2,157 2,614 
TToottaall  OOtthheerr  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  22,,118899  22,,663333  
     
**  TToottaall  MMoonniieess  HHeelldd  iinn  TTrruusstt     
RReepprreesseenntteedd  bbyy  tthhee  ffoolllloowwiinngg  aasssseettss::     
Cash Assets (refer to Note 6.2) 2,189 2,633 
TTOOTTAALL  22,,118899  22,,663333  

  
RReeffuunnddaabbllee  AAccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  DDeeppoossiitt  ((““RRAADD””))//AAccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  BBoonndd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess    
RADs/accommodation bonds are non-interest-bearing deposits made by some aged care residents to the Group upon 
admission. These deposits are liabilities which fall due and payable when the resident leaves the home. As there is no 
unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilities are recorded as current liabilities.  
 
RAD/accommodation bond liabilities are recorded at an amount equal to the proceeds received, net of retention and any 
other amounts deducted from the RAD/accommodation bond in accordance with the Aged Care Act 1997.    
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NNOOTTEE  66::  HOW WE FINANCE OUR OPERATIONS 
 
This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by Portland District Health during its 
operations, along with interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other information related to financing 
activities of the hospital. 
 

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash 
balances). Note 7.1provides additional, specific financial instrument disclosures. 
 

SSttrruuccttuurree  
  

66..11  BBoorrrroowwiinnggss  
66..22  CCaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss  
66..33  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  ffoorr  eexxppeennddiittuurree  
  
  
NNoottee  66..11::    BBoorrrroowwiinnggss  
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  

  
CCUURRRREENNTT    

DHHS Loan (ii) 1,873 614 
Lease Liability (i) 162 127 
TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  bboorrrroowwiinnggss  22,,003355  774411  
   

NNOONN  CCUURRRREENNTT    

DHHS Loan (ii) 217 282 
Lease Liability (ii) 203 287 
TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  bboorrrroowwiinnggss  442200  556699  

   
TToottaall  BBoorrrroowwiinnggss  22,,445555  11,,331100  
 
(i) Secured by the assets leased. Finance leases are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the 

lessor in the event of default. 
(ii) These are unsecured loans which bear no interest. 

((aa))  MMaattuurriittyy  aannaallyyssiiss  ooff  bboorrrroowwiinnggss  

Please refer to Note 7.1(b) for the maturity analysis 
of borrowings. 

  ((bb))  DDeeffaauullttss  aanndd  bbrreeaacchheess  

During the current and prior year, there were no 
defaults and breaches of any of the loans. 

  
All borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received, less directly attributable 
transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Portland 
District Health has categorised its liability as either ‘financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or 
loss’, or financial liabilities at ‘amortised cost’. 
 

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any 
difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in the net result 
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over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. Non-interest bearing borrowings are measured at 
‘fair value through profit or loss’. 
 
 

NNoottee  66..22::    CCaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss  
 
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in banks, and short-term deposits 
which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts. 
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  
   
Cash on Hand (excluding monies held in trust) 8 9 
Cash at Bank (excluding monies held in trust) 2,806 2,510 
Cash at Bank – CBS (excluding monies held in trust) 780 1 
Cash at Bank – CBS (monies held in trust) 2,189 2,633 
TToottaall  CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  55,,778833  55,,115533  
Represented by:   
Cash for Health Service Operations 3,095 2,439 
Cash for Jointly Controlled Assets (note 8.8) 499 81 
Cash for Monies Held in Trust (note 5.3) 2,189 2,633 
TToottaall  CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  55,,778833  55,,115533  

 

CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and 
highly liquid investments (with an original maturity of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting 
short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes which are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included as 
liabilities on the balance sheet.  
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NNoottee  66..33::    CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  ffoorr  EExxppeennddiittuurree  
 

  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22002200  
$$''000000  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
22001199  
$$''000000  

aa))  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss        
CCaappiittaall  eexxppeennddiittuurree  ccoommmmiittmmeennttss      
Less than 1 year 650 528  
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years 197 -  
TToottaall  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  ((iinncclluussiivvee  ooff  GGSSTT))    884477  552288  

less GST recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (77)    (48)  

TToottaall  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  ((eexxcclluussiivvee  ooff  GGSSTT))  ootthheerr  tthhaann  ppuubblliicc  pprriivvaattee  ppaarrttnneerrsshhiippss  777700  448800  
 

All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST. 
 

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These 
future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the 
Balance Sheet. 
 
  
  
  
NNOOTTEE  77::  RISKS, CONTINGENCIES & VALUATION UNCERTAINTIES 
 

Portland District Health is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary 
to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and measurement of items in the financial 
statements. This section sets out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial 
risks) as well as those items that are contingent in nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, 
which for the hospital is related mainly to fair value determination. 
 
SSttrruuccttuurree  
  
77..11  FFiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss  
77..22  CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  aasssseettss  aanndd  ccoonnttiinnggeenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  
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NNoottee  77..11::    FFiinnaanncciiaall  IInnssttrruummeennttss  
 

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of Portland District Health's activities, 
certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets 
and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation.  
 

((aa))  FFiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss::  ccaatteeggoorriissaattiioonn  
    
CCaatteeggoorriissaattiioonn  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss  

FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss  aatt  
AAmmoorrttiisseedd  CCoosstt  

FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
aatt  AAmmoorrttiisseedd  CCoosstt  TToottaall  

  22002200  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss    
Cash and cash equivalents 5,783 - 5,783 
Receivables    
 - Trade Debtors 607 - 607 
 - Other Receivables 470 - 470 
TToottaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss  ((ii))  66,,886600  --  66,,886600  
  
FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
Payables - 3,379 3,379 
Borrowings  2,455 2,455 
Other Financial Liabilities -   
 - Accommodation bonds - 2,157 2,157 
 - Other - 32 32 
TToottaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  ((ii))  --  88,,002233  88,,002233  

 
CCaatteeggoorriissaattiioonn  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss    
  

FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss  aatt  
AAmmoorrttiisseedd  CCoosstt  

FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess    
aatt  AAmmoorrttiisseedd  CCoosstt  TToottaall  

  22001199  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss    
Cash and cash equivalents 5,153 - 5,153 
Receivables    

 - Trade Debtors 578 - 578 
 - Other Receivables 580 - 580 
TToottaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss  ((ii))  66,,331111  --  66,,331111  

   
FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
Payables - 4,044 4,044 
Borrowings  1,310 1,310 
Other Financial Liabilities -   
 - Accommodation bonds - 2,614 2,614 
 - Other - 18 18 
TToottaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  ((ii))  --  77,,998866                  77,,998866  

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DHHS receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. 
Revenue in Advance and DHHS payable). 
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FFiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss  aatt  aammoorrttiisseedd  ccoosstt  
Financial assets are measured at amortised costs if 
both of the following criteria are met and the 
assets are not designated as fair value through net 
result: 

• the assets are held by Portland District Health 
to collect the contractual cash flows, and 

• the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interests. 

These assets are initially recognised at fair value 
plus any directly attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method less any impairment.  

Portland District Health recognises the following 
assets in this category: 

• cash and deposits; 
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables); 

and 
• term deposits 

DDeerreeccooggnniittiioonn  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss  
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the asset have expired or, 
Portland District Health retains the right to receive 
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an 
obligation to pay them in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ 
arrangement; or Portland District Health has 
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset and either: 
• has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset; or 
• has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset but has transferred control of the asset. 

Where Portland District Health has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards or transferred control, the asset is 
recognised involvement to the extent of Portland  
 

 
District Health's continuing involvement in the 
asset. 

FFiinnaanncciiaall  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  aatt  aammoorrttiisseedd  ccoosstt    
Financial liabilities are initially recognised on the 
date they are originated. They are initially 
measured at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, these financial instruments are 
measured at amortised cost with any difference 
between the initial recognised amount and the 
redemption value being recognised in profit and 
loss over the period of the interest bearing 
liability, using the effective interest rate method. 
Portland District Health recognises the following 
liabilities in this category: 

• payables (excluding statutory payables);  
• borrowings; and 

• other liabilities 

DDeerreeccooggnniittiioonn  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  
A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised as an ‘other economic flow’ 
in the comprehensive operating statement.  

RReeccllaassssiiffiiccaattiioonn  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss:: 
Subsequent to initial recognition reclassification of 
financial liabilities is not permitted. Financial 
assets are required to reclassified between fair 
value through net result, fair value through other 
comprehensive income and amortised cost when 
and only when Portland District Health Service’s 
business model for managing its financial assets 
has changes such that its previous model would no 
longer apply.
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NNoottee  77..11  ((bb))::  MMaattuurriittyy  aannaallyyssiiss  ooff  FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aass  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  
 
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Portland District Health’s financial liabilities. 
For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements. 
 

        MMaattuurriittyy  DDaatteess  

 

NNoottee  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
CCaarrrryyiinngg  
AAmmoouunntt  

CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
NNoommiinnaall  
AAmmoouunntt  

LLeessss  
tthhaann  11  
MMoonntthh  

11--33  
MMoonntthhss  

33  
mmoonntthhss  
--  11  YYeeaarr  

11--55  
YYeeaarrss  

22002200    $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  
FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 

At amortised cost        

Payables  3,379 3,379 3,379 - - - 
Borrowings  2,455 2,455 - - 2,035 420 
Other Financial 
Liabilities (i) 

       

- Accommodation 
Bonds 

 2,157 2,157 - - - 2,157 

- Other  32 32 32 - - - 
TToottaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  
LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  

 88,,002233  88,,002233  33,,441111  --  22,,003355  22,,557777  

    

  
22001199  
  
FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 

At amortised cost        

Payables  4,044 4,044 2,616 665 763 - 
Borrowings  1,310 1,310 - - 1,023 287 
Other Financial 
Liabilities (i) 

       

- Accommodation 
Bonds 

 2,614 2,614 - - - 2,614 

- Other  18 18 18 - - - 
TToottaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  
LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  

  77,,998866  77,,998866  22,,663344  666655  11,,778866  22,,990011  

                
 (i) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial 

liabilities (i.e GST payable) 
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NNoottee  77..11  ((cc))::  CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall  rreecceeiivvaabblleess  aatt  aammoorrttiisseedd  ccoosstt  
 

0011--JJuull--1199  CCuurrrreenntt  LLeessss  tthhaann  
11  mmoonntthh  

11––33  
mmoonntthhss  

33  mmoonntthhss  
––11  yyeeaarr  

11––55  TToottaall  yyeeaarrss  
EExxppeecctteedd  lloossss  rraattee  0% 0% 0% 66% 0%     
Gross carrying amount of contractual 
receivables 631 211 115 198 0       11,,115533    

LLoossss  aalllloowwaannccee  00  00  00  7700  00  7700  

       

3300--JJuunn--2200  CCuurrrreenntt  LLeessss  tthhaann  
11  mmoonntthh  

11––33  
mmoonntthhss  

33  mmoonntthhss  
––11  yyeeaarr  

11––55  TToottaall  yyeeaarrss  
EExxppeecctteedd  lloossss  rraattee  0% 0% 0% 70% 100%     
Gross carrying amount of contractual 
receivables 696 173 124 127 31 11,,115511  

LLoossss  aalllloowwaannccee  00  00  00  110000  3311  113311  
 
IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss  uunnddeerr  AAAASSBB  99    
Portland District Health records the allowance for 
expected credit loss for the relevant financial 
instruments, in accordance with AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments ‘Expected Credit Loss’ approach. 
Subject to AASB 9 Financial Instruments, 
impairment assessment includes the Portland 
District Health's contractual receivables, statutory 
receivables and its investment in debt 
instruments. 

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment 
under AASB 9. Other financial assets mandatorily 
measured or designated at fair value through net 
result are not subject to impairment assessment 
under AASB 9. While cash and cash equivalents are 
also subject to the impairment requirements of 
AASB 9, the identified impairment loss was 
immaterial.  

CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall  rreecceeiivvaabblleess  aatt  aammoorrttiisseedd  ccoosstt  
The Portland District Health applies AASB 9 
simplified approach for all contractual receivables 
to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime 
expected loss allowance based on the assumptions 
about risk of default and expected loss rates. 
Portland District Health has grouped contractual 
receivables on shared credit risk characteristics 
and days past due and select the expected credit 
loss rate based on the Department’s past history, 
existing market conditions, as well as 
forward-looking estimates at the end of the 
financial year.  

On this basis, Portland District Health determines 
the opening loss allowance on initial application 
date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at 
end of the financial year as disclosed above. 

RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  mmoovveemmeenntt  iinn  tthhee  lloossss  aalllloowwaannccee  ffoorr  ccoonnttrraaccttuuaall  rreecceeiivvaabblleess  

  
  

22002200  
  

22001199  

BBaallaannccee  aatt  bbeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff  tthhee  yyeeaarr  7700  5500  
Opening retained earnings adjustment on adoption of AASB 9   

OOppeenniinngg  LLoossss  AAlllloowwaannccee    7700  5500  
Modification of contractual cash flows on financial assets   

Increase in provision recognised in the net result 61 20 
Reversal of provision of receivables written off during the year as 
uncollectible   

Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result    

BBaallaannccee  aatt  eenndd  ooff  tthhee  yyeeaarr  113311  7700  
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Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery and impairment losses are classified as a 
transaction expense. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same 
line item. 

In prior years, a provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts 
may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified. A provision is made for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is 
impaired. Bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent.  

SSttaattuuttoorryy  rreecceeiivvaabblleess  aanndd  ddeebbtt  iinnvveessttmmeennttss  aatt  aammoorrttiisseedd  ccoosstt  [[AAAASSBB22001166--88..44]]  

Portland District Health’s non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements are not financial 
instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised and measured in accordance with AASB 9 
requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments.  

Both the statutory receivables and investments in debt instruments are considered to have low credit risk, 
taking into account the counterparty’s credit rating, risk of default and capacity to meet contractual cash flow 
obligations in the near term. As the result, the loss allowance recognised for these financial assets during the 
period was limited to 12 months expected losses.  

  
  
NNoottee  77..22::    CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  AAsssseettss  aanndd  CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
 
As at balance date, the Board of Directors are unaware of the existence of a contingent asset that may have a 
material effect on the balance sheet (2019 $0). 
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NNOOTTEE  88::  OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the 
understanding of this financial report. 
 
SSttrruuccttuurree  
  
88..11  RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  nneett  rreessuullttss  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  ttoo  nneett  ccaasshh  ffllooww  ffrroomm  ooppeerraattiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess  
88..22  RReessppoonnssiibbllee  PPeerrssoonnss  
88..33  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  
88..44  RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess  
88..55  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  AAuuddiittoorrss  
88..66  EEvveennttss  OOccccuurrrriinngg  AAfftteerr  tthhee  BBaallaannccee  SShheeeett  DDaattee  
88..77  CCoonnttrroolllleedd  EEnnttiittiieess  
88..88  JJooiinnttllyy  CCoonnttrroolllleedd  OOppeerraattiioonnss  
88..99  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  aaccccoouunntteedd  ffoorr  uussiinngg  tthhee  EEqquuiittyy  MMeetthhoodd  
88..1100  EEccoonnoommiicc  ddeeppeennddeennccyy  
88..1111    AAAASSBBss  IIssssuueedd  tthhaatt  aarree  nnoott  yyeett  eeffffeeccttiivvee  
88..1122  CChhaannggee  iinn  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  PPoolliicciieess  
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NNoottee  88..11::    RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  nneett  rreessuulltt  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  ttoo  nneett  ccaasshh  iinnffllooww//((oouuttffllooww))  ffrroomm  

ooppeerraattiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess  
 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
 22002200  22001199  
 $$''000000  $$''000000  
NNeett  rreessuulltt  ffoorr  tthhee  ppeerriioodd  (3,127) (1,368) 

NNoonn--ccaasshh  mmoovveemmeennttss::    
Depreciation and amortisation 3,904 3,495 
Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables 61 20 
Revaluation of investment property 520  
(Profit)/loss on disposal of PPE (18)  

MMoovveemmeennttss  iinncclluuddeedd  iinn  iinnvveessttiinngg  aanndd  ffiinnaanncciinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess    
Operating (Profit)/Loss from Joint Ventures (1) (3) 
Capital Donations (129)  

MMoovveemmeennttss  iinn  aasssseettss  aanndd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess::    
Change in operating assets and liabilities   
     (Increase)/decrease in receivables (67) (540) 
     (Increase)/decrease in prepayments and other assets 166 (119) 
     (Increase)/decrease in inventories 1 (10) 
     Increase/(decrease) in payables (919) (293) 
     Increase/(decrease) in provisions 856 847 
     Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (19) 273 

  
NNEETT  CCAASSHH  IINNFFLLOOWW//((OOUUTTFFLLOOWW))  FFRROOMM  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  11,,226666  22,,330022  
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NNoottee  88..22::    RReessppoonnssiibbllee  PPeerrssoonnss  DDiisscclloossuurreess  
 

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial 
Management Act 1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting 
period. 
  

    PPeerriioodd  
RReessppoonnssiibbllee  MMiinniisstteerrss::    
The Honourable Jenny Mikakos -  Minister for Health and Minister for 
Ambulance Services 01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 

The Honourable Martin Foley -  Minister for Mental Health  01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
The Honourable Luke Donnellan - Minister for Child Protection, 
Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers  01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
GGoovveerrnniinngg  BBooaarrddss        
Dr A Levings   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
Ms A Rank   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
Prof M Bailey   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
Prof L Fuller   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
Dr A Miller   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
Ms R Pevitt   01/07/2019 - 05/02/2020 
Mr A Campbell   01/07/2019 - 29/05/2020 
Ms S Burgoyne   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
Prof M Bartos   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020 
AAccccoouunnttaabbllee  OOffffiicceerrss      
Ms C Giles   01/07/2019 - 30/06/2020  

    

RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  RReessppoonnssiibbllee  PPeerrssoonnss       
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands         

   
  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd   

    22002200  22001199  
IInnccoommee  BBaanndd      NNoo..  NNoo..  
$0 - $9,999  9 10 
$240,000 - $249,999  1 - 
$260,000 - $269,999  - 1 
TToottaall  NNuummbbeerrss  1100  1111  

   
  22002200  22001199   
  $$''000000  $$''000000  

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons 
from the reporting entity amounted to: 275 284 

 
Amounts relating to the Governing Board Members and Accountable Officer are disclosed in the Portland 
District Health’s controlled entities financial statements. 
 
Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services' 
Financial Report. 
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NNoottee  88..33::    RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  
 
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration 
during the reporting period are shown in the table below. Total annualised employee equivalent provides a 
measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period. 
Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange 
for services rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories: 
  
SShhoorrtt--tteerrmm  EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss    
Salaries and wages, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-
monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.  
  
PPoosstt--eemmppllooyymmeenntt  BBeenneeffiittss  
Pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has ceased.  
  
OOtthheerr  LLoonngg--tteerrmm  BBeenneeffiittss  
Long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.  
  
Total remuneration payable to executives during the year included additional executive officers and a number 
of executives who received bonus payments during the year. These bonus payments depend on the terms of 
individual employment contracts.  
 

 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
  TToottaall  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn    

22002200  22001199  
$$''000000  $$''000000  

      
Short-term benefits 776 651                          
Post-employment benefits 63 69                             
Other long-term benefits 24 17                            
TToottaall  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  886633  773377                                                    

TToottaall  nnuummbbeerr  ooff  eexxeeccuuttiivveess  44  55  

TToottaall  aannnnuuaalliisseedd  eemmppllooyyeeee  eeqquuiivvaalleenntt  ((AAEEEE))**  44  33..77  
  
*Annualised employee equivalent is based on the time fraction worked during the reporting period.  This is 
calculated as the total number of days the employee is engaged to work during the week by the total number 
of full-time working days per week. 
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NNoottee  88..44::    RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess  
 

Portland District Health is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the 
hospital include: 

• All key management personnel (KMP) and their close family members; 
• Cabinet ministers and their close family members; 
• Controlled Entities – Active Health Portland Limited; 
• Jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the South West Alliance of Rural Health; and 
• All hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the State of Victoria 

financial statements. 
All related party transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length basis. 
 

KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities 
of the Portland District Health and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly.  
 

The Board of Directors, Accountable Officer and the Executive Officers of Portland District Health are deemed 
to be KMPs. 
 

EEnnttiittyy  KKMMPPss  PPoossiittiioonn  TTiittllee  

Portland District Health Dr A Levings Chair of the Board 
Portland District Health Ms A Rank Board member 
Portland District Health Prof M Bailey Board Member 
Portland District Health Prof L Fuller Board Member 
Portland District Health Dr A Miller Board Member 
Portland District Health Mr A Campbell Board Member 
Portland District Health Mrs R Pevitt Board Member 
Portland District Health Ms S Burgoyne Board member 
Portland District Health Prof M Bartos Board Member 
Portland District Health Ms C Giles Chief Executive Officer 
Portland District Health Ms K Prevett Executive Director Corporate Services 
Portland District Health Dr K Banerjea Executive Director Clinical Services Medical 
Portland District Health MS R Alexander Executive Director Clinical Services Nursing 
Portland District Health Ms M Cadenhead Executive Director Primary Care Services 
Active Health Portland Ms A Rank Chair of Board 
Active Health Portland Mr M Noske Board member 
Active Health Portland Mr D Ford Board member 
Active Health Portland Ms M Robertson Board member 

 
 CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  OOffffiicceerrss  TToottaall  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  
((iinncclluuddiinngg  KKeeyy  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPeerrssoonnnneell  DDiisscclloosseedd  iinn  NNoottee  88..55))  22002200  22001199  

$$''000000  $$''000000  
      
Short-term benefits 1,024 902                         
Post-employment benefits 84 89                             
Other long-term benefits 30 29                            
TToottaall  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  11,,113388  11,,002200                                                    
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The Minister’s remuneration and allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968, 
and is reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.
  
SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  wwiitthh  ggoovveerrnnmmeenntt--rreellaatteedd  
eennttiittiieess 
Portland District Health received funding from the 
Department of Health and Human Services of 
$39.7m (2019: $37.1m).  
 
Expenses incurred by Portland District Health in 
delivering services and outputs are in accordance 
with Health Purchasing Victoria requirements. 
Goods and services including procurement, 
diagnostics, patient meals and multi-site 
operational support are provided by other Victorian 
Health Service Providers on commercial terms. 
 
Professional medical indemnity insurance and 
other insurance products are obtained from a 
Victorian Public Financial Corporation. 
 
The Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer 
require Portland District Health to hold cash (in 
excess of working capital) in accordance with the 
State’s centralised banking arrangements. All 
borrowings are required to be sourced from 
Treasury Corporation Victorian unless an 
exemption has been approved by the Minister for 
Health and Human Services and the Treasurer. 

 
TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  wwiitthh  KKeeyy  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPeerrssoonnnneell  aanndd  
OOtthheerr  RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess  
Given the breadth and depth of State government 
activities, related parties transact with the Victorian 
public sector in a manner consistent with other 
members of the public e.g. stamp duty and other 
government fees and charges. Further employment 
of processes within the Victorian public sector 
occur on terms and conditions consistent with the 
Public Administration Act 2004 and Codes of 
Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian 
Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes 
occur on terms and conditions consistent with the 
Victorian Government Procurement Board 
requirements. Outside of normal citizen type 
transactions with the Department of Health and 
Human Services, all other related party transactions 
that involved KMPs and their close family members 
have been entered into on an arm's length basis. 
Transactions are disclosed when they are 
considered material to the users of the financial  

 
report in making and evaluation decisions about 
the allocation of scare resources. No provision has 
been required, nor any expense recognised, for 
impairment of receivables from related parties. 
 
There were no related party transactions with 
Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2019. 
 
There were no related party transactions required 
to be disclosed for Portland District Health Board of 
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive 
Directors in 2020. 
 
There were no other related party transactions 
required to be disclosed for Active Health Portland 
Limited Board of Directors in 2020. 
  
OOtthheerr  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  ooff  RReessppoonnssiibbllee  PPeerrssoonnss  aanndd  tthheeiirr  
RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess  
Transactions with responsible persons and their 
related parties are all on normal terms and 
conditions. 
 
A related party of an Executive Officer of Portland 
District Health Mr M Alexander was paid $14.6k 
rent during the current financial year.  

CCoonnttrroolllleedd  EEnnttiittiieess  RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttyy  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  
Ms A Rank was chair of the Board of Management 
for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 of 
controlled entity Active Health Portland Ltd (AHP). 
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NNoottee  88..55::    RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  AAuuddiittoorrss  
  

  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  
  22002200  22001199  
  $$''000000  $$''000000  

VViiccttoorriiaann  AAuuddiittoorr--GGeenneerraall''ss  OOffffiiccee      

Audit of  the Financial Statements 28 27 
 

TToottaall  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  AAuuddiittoorrss  2288  2277  

  
NNoottee  88..66::  EEvveennttss  OOccccuurrrriinngg  AAfftteerr  tthhee  BBaallaannccee  SShheeeett  DDaattee  
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the transactions 
result from an agreement between Portland District Health and other parties, the transactions are only 
recognised when the agreement is irrevocable at or before the end of the reporting period.  
 
Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the financial statements for events which occur between the 
end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue, where those 
events provide information about conditions which existed at the reporting date. Note disclosure is made about 
events between the end of the reporting period and the date the financial statements are authorised for issue 
where the events relate to conditions which arose after the end of the reporting period that are considered to 
be of material interest.   
   
 The Covid-19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic uncertainty. Actual economic events and 
conditions in the future may be materially different from those estimated by Portland District Health at the 
reporting date. As responses by government continue to evolve, management recognises it is difficult to reliably 
estimate with any degree of certainty the potential impact of the pandemic after the reporting date on Portland 
District Health, its operations, its future results and financial position. The state of emergency in Victoria was 
extended on 4 September 2020 until 16 March 2021 and the state of disaster remains in place.  
 
 No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected 
or may affect the operations of Portland District Health, the results of the operations or the state of affairs of 
Portland District Health in the future financial years   
   

  
NNoottee  88..77::      CCoonnttrroolllleedd  eennttiittiieess  
 

NNaammee  ooff  EEnnttiittyy  CCoouunnttrryy  ooff  IInnccoorrppoorraattiioonn  EEqquuiittyy  HHoollddiinngg  

Active Health Portland Ltd Australia 100% 

  
  

CCOONNTTRROOLLLLEEDD  EENNTTIITTIIEESS  CCOONNTTRRIIBBUUTTIIOONN  TTOO  TTHHEE  CCOONNSSOOLLIIDDAATTEEDD  RREESSUULLTTSS  
  

NNEETT  RREESSUULLTT  FFOORR  TTHHEE  YYEEAARR  
22002200  22001199  
$$''000000  $$''000000  

Active Health Portland Ltd 38           33  
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NNoottee  88..88::  JJooiinnttllyy  CCoonnttrroolllleedd  OOppeerraattiioonnss  
 

NNaammee  ooff  EEnnttiittyy  PPrriinncciippaall  AAccttiivviittyy  
OOwwnneerrsshhiipp  IInntteerreesstt  
22002200  22001199  

%%  %%  
    Information 

Systems 
    

South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) 5.73 5.62 
 

Portland District Health’s interest in the above jointly controlled operations are detailed below. The amounts are 
included in the consolidated financial statements under their respective categories: 
 

SSoouutthh  WWeesstt  AAlllliiaannccee  ooff  RRuurraall  HHeeaalltthh    22002200  22001199  
    $$''000000  $$''000000  
CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss  
Cash at Bank   499 81 
Receivables   370 378 
Prepayments  31 0 
Inventories   3 4 
TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss    990033  446633  
NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss      
Property, Plant and Equipment   331 334 
Receivables  33 0 
TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss    336644  333344  
       

TToottaall  AAsssseettss      11,,226677  779977  

 
CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 
Payables   541 243 
Financial Liabilities   56 78 
Employee Benefits   98 96 
Deferred Revenue   273 37 
TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess    996688  445544  
        
NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess      
Employee Benefits   19 14 
Financial Liabilities   74    117 
TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess    9933  113311  
TToottaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess    11,,006611  558855  
SShhaarree  ooff  CCoonnttrroolllleedd  EEnnttiittiieess''  NNeett  AAsssseettss    220066  221122  
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SSoouutthh  WWeesstt  AAlllliiaannccee  ooff  RRuurraall  HHeeaalltthh    22002200  22001199  
    $$''000000  $$''000000  
RReevveennuuee  
Revenue from operations   1,115 1,305         
TToottaall  RReevveennuuee    11,,111155  11,,330055                    
      

EExxppeennsseess  
Employee benefits   (501) (469)          
Maintenance Contract & IT Support  (443) (554) 
Finance Costs  (6) (31) 
Depreciation  (104) (159) 
Other expenses from ordinary activities   (97) (81)          

TToottaall  EExxppeennsseess    ((11,,115522))  ((11,,229944))              

NNeett  ooppeerraattiinngg  rreessuulltt    ((3377))  1111                          
    
CCaappiittaall  aanndd  ssppeecciiffiicc  iitteemmss    
Capital revenue   55 95             
NNeett  CCaappiittaall  RReessuulltt  ffoorr  tthhee  YYeeaarr    5555  9955                    
    
OOtthheerr  eeccoonnoommiicc  fflloowwss  iinncclluuddeedd  iinn  tthhee  rreessuulltt                                  
Revaluation of long service leave (9) 4               
SShhaarree  ooff  JJooiinnttllyy  CCoonnttrroolllleedd  EEnnttiittiieess’’  NNeett  RReessuulltt  99  111100                              
    
CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  CCaappiittaall  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss      
There are no known contingent assets or liabilities for South West Alliance of Rural Health as at the date of 
this report. 
    
The financial results included for South West Alliance of Rural Health are unaudited at the date of signing the 
financial statements. 

 
NNoottee  88..99::  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  AAccccoouunntteedd  ffoorr  uussiinngg  tthhee  EEqquuiittyy  MMeetthhoodd  

 
    

PPrriinncciippaall  
AAccttiivviittyy  

OOwwnneerrsshhiipp  IInntteerreesstt  PPuubblliisshheedd  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee  
    22002200  22001199  22002200  22001199  
NNaammee  ooff  EEnnttiittyy  %%  %%  $$''000000  $$''000000  
    Primary 

Health 
        

Southern Grampians/Glenelg Shire PCP 31 31 86 84 
 
   An associate is an entity over which Portland District Health exercises significant influence, but not control. 
 

The investment in the associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity 
method for accounting, the investment in the associate is recognised at cost on initial recognition, and the 
carrying amount is increased or decreased in subsequent years to recognise Portland District Health’s share of 
the profits or losses of the associates after the date of acquisition. Portland District Health’s share of the 
associate’s profit or loss is recognised in Portland District Health’s net result as ‘Share of net result of associates 
and Joint Ventures accounted for using the Equity Method’. The share of post-acquisition changes in 
revaluation surpluses and any other reserves are recognised in both the comprehensive operating statement 
and the statement of changes in equity.  
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NNoottee  88..1100::    EEccoonnoommiicc  ddeeppeennddeennccyy  
  
The Portland District Health is wholly dependent on the continued financial support of the State Government 
and in particular, the Department of Health and Human Services. 
 
The Department of Health and Human Services has provided confirmation that it will continue to provide the 
Portland District Health adequate cash flow support to meet its current and future obligations as and when 
they fall due for a period up to 30 June 2021. On that basis, the financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis. 
 
The health service’s current asset ratio continues to be below an adequate short term position (2020: 0.56 and 
2019: 0.56) while cash generated from operations has deteriorated from a $2.3m surplus in 2019 to a $2.1m 
surplus in 2020 and cash reserves have improved from $2.4m in 2019 to $3.5m in 2020.  
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NNoottee  88..1111::    AAAASSBBss  iissssuueedd  tthhaatt  aarree  nnoott  yyeett  eeffffeeccttiivvee  
  

Certain new Australian accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 
reporting period. Department of Treasury and Finance assesses the impact of all these new standards and 
advises Portland District Health of their applicability and early adoption where applicable. 
 

As at 30 June 2020, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by the AASB but were not yet 
effective. They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the 
stated operative dates as detailed in the table below.  Portland District Health has not and does not intend to 
adopt these standards early. 

SSttaannddaarrdd//  
IInntteerrpprreettaattiioonn  

SSuummmmaarryy  

AApppplliiccaabbllee  ffoorr  
aannnnuuaall  
rreeppoorrttiinngg  
ppeerriiooddss  
bbeeggiinnnniinngg  oonn  

IImmppaacctt  oonn  ppuubblliicc  PPoorrttllaanndd  
DDiissttrriicctt  HHeeaalltthh’’ss  ffiinnaanncciiaall  
ssttaatteemmeennttss  

AASB 2018-7 
Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – 
Definition of 
Material 

This Standard principally amends AASB 101 
Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 108 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors. The amendments refine and clarify the 
definition of material in AASB 101 and its application 
by improving the wording and aligning the definition 
across AASB Standards and other publications. The 
amendments also include some supporting 
requirements in AASB 101 in the definition to give it 
more prominence and clarify the explanation 
accompanying the definition of material. 

1 January 
2020 

The standard is not expected 
to have a significant impact 
on the public sector. 

AASB 2020-1 
Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – 
Classification of 
Liabilities as 
Current or Non-
Current 

This Standard amends AASB 101 to clarify 
requirements for the presentation of liabilities in the 
statement of financial position as current or non-
current. A liability is classified as non-current if an 
entity has the right at the end of the reporting period 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting period. The meaning of 
settlement of a liability is also clarified. 

1 January 
2022. 
However, ED 
301 has been 
issued with 
the intention 
to defer 
application to 
1 January 
2023. 

The standard is not expected 
to have a significant impact 
on the public sector. 

In addition to the new standards and amendments above, the AASB has issued a list of other amending standards that are 
not effective for the 2019-20 reporting period (as listed below). In general, these amending standards include editorial 
and reference changes that are expected to have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting. 

·       AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of a Business. 
·       AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – References to the Conceptual Framework. 
·       AASB 2019-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. 
·       AASB 2019-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure of the Effect of New IFRS Standards Not Yet 

Issued in Australia. 
·       AASB 2019-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure in Special Purpose Financial Statements of 

Not-for-Profit Private Sector Entities on Compliance with Recognition and Measurement Requirements. 

·       AASB 2020-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Removal of Special Purpose Financial Statements for 
Certain For-Profit Private Sector Entities. 

·       AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements – Simplified Disclosures for For-Profit and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 
Entities (Appendix C). 

·       Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.[1] 
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NNoottee  88..1122::    CChhaannggeess  iinn  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  PPoolliiccyy  
 
LLeeaasseess    
This note explains the impact of the adoption of AASB 16 Leases on Portland District Health’s financial 
statements. 
Portland District Health has applied AASB 16 with a date of initial application of 1 July 2019. Portland District 
Health has elected to apply AASB 16 using the modified retrospective approach, as per the transitional 
provisions of AASB 16 for all leases for which it is a lessee. The cumulative effect of initial application is 
recognised in retained earnings as at 1 July 2019. Accordingly, the comparative information presented is not 
restated and is reported under AASB 117 and related interpretations.   
Previously, Portland District Health determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or contains a 
lease under AASB 117 and Interpretation 4 – ‘Determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease’. Under 
AASB 16, Portland District Health assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a 
lease as explained in note 6.1.   
On transition to AASB 16, Portland District Health has elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather 
the assessment of which transactions are leases. It applied AASB 16 only to contracts that were previously 
identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under AASB 117 and Interpretation 4 were not 
reassessed for whether there is a lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under AASB 16 was applied to 
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 July 2019.   
 

Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117  
As a lessee, Portland District Health previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its 
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
the underlying asset to Portland District Health. Under AASB 16, Portland District Health recognises right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for all leases except where exemption is availed in respect of short-term and low 
value leases.   
On adoption of AASB 16, Portland District Health recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had 
previously been classified as operating leases under the principles of AASB 117 Leases. These liabilities were 
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using Portland District Health’s 
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 July 2019. On transition, right-of-use assets are measured at the amount 
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that 
lease recognised in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2019.   
Portland District Health has elected to apply the following practical expedients when applying AASB 16 to 
leases previously classified as operating leases under AASB 117:  

• Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics;  
• Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of AASB 137 onerous contracts provision immediately 

before the date of initial application, as an alternative to an impairment review;  
• Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 

months of lease term;  
• Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; 

and   
• Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or 

terminate the lease.  
For leases that were classified as finance leases under AASB 117, the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset 
and lease liability at 1 July 2019 are determined as the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability 
under AASB 117 immediately before that date.   
 

Leases as a Lessor  
Portland District Health is not required to make any adjustments on transition to AASB 16 for leases in which it 
acts as a lessor. Portland District Health accounted for its leases in accordance with AASB 16 from the date of 
initial application.   
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Impacts on financial statements  
On transition to AASB 16, Portland District Health recognised $379k of right-of-use assets and $379 of lease 
liabilities.  
When measuring lease liabilities, Portland District Health discounted lease payments using its incremental 
borrowing rate at 1 July 2019. The weighted average rate applied is 0.8%.   
 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
In accordance with FRD 121 requirements, Portland District Health has applied the transitional provision of 
AASB 15, under modified retrospective method with the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard 
against the opening retained earnings at 1 July 2019. On transition to AASB15, Portland District Health 
recognised its share of SWARH deferred revenue of $60k. Under this transition method, Portland District 
Health applied this standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not ‘completed contracts’ at the date of 
initial application. Portland District Health has not applied the fair value measurement requirements for right-
of-use assets arising from leases with significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the 
entity to further its objectives as allowed under temporary option under AASB 16 and as mandated by FRD 
122. 
Comparative information has not been restated.  
Note 2.1.1 – Sales of goods and services includes details about the transitional application of AASB 15 and how 
the standard has been applied to revenue transactions.   
 

Income of Not-for-Profit Entities  
In accordance with FRD 122 requirements, Portland District Health has applied the transitional provision of 
AASB 1058, under modified retrospective method with the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard 
against the opening retained earnings at 1 July 2019. Under this transition method, Portland District 
Health applied this standard retrospectively only to contracts and transactions that are not completed 
contracts at the date of initial application.  
Comparative information has not been restated.  
Note 2.1 (a) – Grants includes details about the transitional application of AASB 1058 and how the standard 
has been applied to revenue transactions.   
The adoption of AASB 1058 did not have an impact on Other comprehensive income and the Statement of 
Cash flows for the financial year.  
 

Transition impact on financial statements 
This note explains the impact of the adoption of the following new accounting standards for the first time, 
from 1 July 2019:  

• AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers; 
• AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities; and 
• AASB 16 Leases. 

Impact on Balance Sheet due to the adoption of AASB 15, AASB 1058 and AASB 16 is illustrated with the 
following reconciliation between the restated carrying amounts at 30 June 2019 and the balances reported 
under the new accounting standards (AASB 15 and AASB 16) at 1 July 2019: 
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NNootteess  BBeeffoorree  nneeww  
aaccccoouunnttiinngg  
ssttaannddaarrddss  
OOppeenniinngg  11  JJuullyy  
22001199    

IImmppaacctt  ooff  nneeww  
aaccccoouunnttiinngg  
ssttaannddaarrddss  --
AAAASSBB  1166,,  1155  &&  
11005588    

AAfftteerr  nneeww  
aaccccoouunnttiinngg  
ssttaannddaarrddss  
OOppeenniinngg  11  JJuullyy  
22001199    

          
    $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

Property, Plant and Equipment     64,112 - 64,112  
Total Property, Plant and Equipment   64,112 - 64,112 
TToottaall  AAsssseettss      7744,,771177  --  7744,,771177  
Payables and Contract Liabilities   4,217 60 4,277 
Borrowings   1,310 - 1,310 
TToottaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess      1155,,444411  6600  1155,,550011  
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)   (28,005) (60) (28,065) 
Physical Revaluation Surplus   50,728 0 50,728 
Other items in equity   36,553 0 36,553 
TToottaall  EEqquuiittyy      5599,,227766  ((6600))  5599,,221166  

 
 
Statement of changes in equity – changes for AASB 1058 and AASB 15 adoption 
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020($ thousand)  

  

PPrrooppeerrttyy  
PPllaanntt  &&  

EEqquuiippmmeenntt  
RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  

SSuurrpplluuss  

RReessttrriicctteedd  
SSppeecciiffiicc  

PPuurrppoossee  
SSuurrpplluuss  
RReesseerrvvee  

CCoonnttrriibbuutteedd  
CCaappiittaall  

AAccccuummuullaatteedd  
SSuurrpplluusseess  
((DDeeffiicciittss))  

  TToottaall  

            
  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  $$''000000  

            
BBaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJuullyy  22001188  4433,,999933  885588  3355,,669955  ((2266,,663366))  5533,,991100  
Net result for the year - - - (1,368) (1,368) 
Other comprehensive income for the year  6,735 - - - 6,735 
BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22001199    5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((2288,,000055))  5599,,227766  
Change in accounting policy (due 
to AASB 15, 1058)  

- - -                  (60)     (60) 

RReessttaatteedd  bbaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJuullyy  22001199  5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((2288,,006655))  5599,,221166  
Net result for the year  - - - (3,127) (3,127) 
Contribution by owners - - - -  
BBaallaannccee  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002200  5500,,772288  885588  3355,,669955  ((3311,,119922))  5566,,008899  
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